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T The home office of the State Auto Insurance

~ . Companies has occupied the corner of Broad and

Washington streets since October 1930. The original

. 40,000 sq. ft., two-story concrete and stone structure

: has undergone three additions. In 1990 the fourth
N addition known as the Pavillion was added, creating a

- 7 - 288,000 sq. ft. complex.
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State Auto Financial Corporation
(“STFC” or “State Auto Financial”) is
an insurance holding company locat-
ed in Columbus, Ohio. STFC and its
subsidiaries are affiliated with State
Automobile  Mutual Insurance
Company (“Mutual”), which owns
approximately 68% of STFC’s com-
mon shares outstanding.

State Auto Property and Casualty
Insurance Company (“State Auto
P&C"), in addition to its insurance
operations, provides management
and operations services for affiliates.

Milbank Insurance Company
(“Milbank”) was acquired by STFC
from Mutual in a stock exchange
transaction in July 1998.

State Auto National (“National’), a
non-standard auto insurer created in
1991, wrote business in 19 states in
2001.

Farmers Casualty Insurance
Company (“Farmers Casualty”), an
lowa domiciled property-casualty
insurer, was acquired by STFC
effective January 1, 1999.

Financial Highlights

STATEMENTS OF

INCOME DATA:

Total operating revenues

Net income from operations®
Net income

© o

PER COMMON SHARE:®®
Basic earnings from operations
Basic earnings

Diluted earnings from operations
Diluted earnings
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BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Total assets $
Stockholders' equity $

PER COMMON SHARE:
Stockholders' equity® $

Statutory Combined Ratio

About the company

Mid-Plains Insurance Company
(“Mid-Plains”), an lowa-domiciled
non-standard auto insurer, is a whol-
ly owned subsidiary of Farmers
Casualty.

In addition, STFC formed State
Auto Insurance Company (“State
Auto IC") in May 1999, and it
received its certificate of authority to
commence business operations in
Ohio effective January 1, 2000.

Stateco Financial Services, Inc.
(“Stateco”) provides investment
management and insurance premi-
um finance services to the insurers
affiliated with STFC.

Strategic Insurance Software, Inc.
(“S.1.87) develops and sells insur-
ance software products and services
for use by insurers and their agen-
cies. S.1.S. provides its products and
services to the insurer affiliates of
STFC and their agents, and nonaffil-
iated insurers and their agencies.

518 Property Management and
lLeasing, LLC (“518 PML"), which
began operations January 1, 1998,

2001* 2000* 1998*
621.3 475.5 438.3
19.3 44.3 41.2
20.6 47.7 42.8
0.50 1.1 1.01
0.53 1.24 1.05
0.49 1.12 0.99
0.52 1.21 1.03
1,367.5 898.1 759.9
400.2 386.1 317.7
10.28 10.01 8.29
105.2% 95.5% 96.9

owns and leases real and personal
property to STFC's affiliates.

An insurance pooling arrangement
exists between State Auto P&C,
Mutual, Milbank, Farmers Casualty,
State Auto IC, and Midwest Security
Insurance Company (“Midwest
Security”), a Wisconsin corporation
that is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Mutual. This arrangement provides
for the sharing of premiums, losses
and expenses among the pool par-
ticipants.

STFC and its affiliates (“State
Auto”™) currently write property and
casualty insurance in 26 states.
Sales are generated through 22,800
independent agents in 3,800 agen-
cies selling primarily personal and
commercial auto, homeowners,
commercial multi-peril, workers’
compensation and fire insurance
products. Marketing, underwriting,
claims and staff operations are fully
integrated, providing multiple prod-
ucts and services for agents and
consumers.

OF STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION
(in millions, except per share data)

1998* 1997
399.1 359.9
35.6 39.0
37.5 41.0
0.85 0.94
0.89 0.99
0.83 0.92
0.87 0.97
717.5 664.4
340.8 297.3
8.11 711
97.8 94.1
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STATE AUTO FINANCIAL

CORPORATION

State Auto Property and

Casualty Insurance Company
| —

518 Property Management
and Leasing, LLC

State Automobile Meridian Citizens Mutual
Mutual Insurance Company Insurance Company
Midwest Security | Meridian Insurance Group, Inc.
Insurance Company
l
State Auto ] Meridian Security
Florida Insurance Company '

Insurance Company |

Stateco Financtal

Services, Inc.

Mitbank

Insurance Company

State Auto National

Insurance Company

Strategic Insurance

Software, Inc.

Farmers Casualty

Insurance Company

State Auto

Insurance Company

Mid-Plains
Insurance Company

{_]Pooled Companies within the State Auto Group

1995~

331.7
28.8
29.9

0.70
0.73
0.69
0.72

579.2
225.8

548

99.6

as of December 31, 2001

1994

252.8
143
15.3

0.36
0.32
0.36
0.39

467.7
175.9

4.29

102.6

1993

2147
12.8
13.1

0.33
0.34
0.33
0.23

445.9
174.0

4.27

104.0

1992*

179.1
8.3
9.3

0.23
0.26
0.23
0.26

307.0
105.4

2.98

108.7

(License application pending)

Meridian Citizens Security Insurance Company
Insurance Company of Ohio

State Auto®
corporate structure

| Rated A+ Superior
A.M. Best Company

*Includes pooling changes effective October 1,
2001, January 1, 2000, 1999, 1998, 1995 and
1992.

(1) Net earnings from operations are net of tax
and exclude after-tax realized investment
gains and losses.

(2) Adjusted for a July 1998 2-for-1 common stock
split, and a July 1996 3-for-2 common stock
split and March 1993 2-for-1 common stock
split effected in the form of a stock dividend.

(3) The net earnings per share amounts prior to
1997 have been restated as required to
comply with SFAS No. 128.
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Last year | had the opportunity to pen the Shareholders’
Letter as the first-year Chairman of your company.
(Although as a 30-year employee | felt more than a little
familiar with the organization!) We began that effort, as is
our custom, with a discussion of underwriting results, writ-
ten premium growth and expense control. These are the
three crucial measures of an insurance company’s perfor-
mance — then, now and in the future.

I wish | could report a seventh straight year of under-
writing profit for State Auto Financial. Unfortunately, while
the “historical” State Auto book did, in fact, produce a prof-
it, the addition of the Meridian Mutual book, which was
merged into State Auto Mutual and thus became part of
the State Auto pool, pushed the overall combined ratio of
State Auto Financial above 100% for 2001. This was pri-
marily driven by our re-evaluating and increasing the case
reserves on many hundreds of previously reported losses
of the former Meridian Mutual. This reserve strengthening
was compressed into the last six months of the year, but
involved claims that occurred as far back as the mid-
1990s and prior. Thus, there was a serious, negative dis-
tortion of the Meridian results for the last two quarters of
2001, which had an adverse impact on the State Auto
pool. None of that is good news, but, if nothing else, we
can assure you that the tough work is behind us and that
we are moving ahead with the more typical aspects of
integrating that operation into State Auto. We remain con-
vinced the Meridian transaction will be a positive step.

Eisewhere in this report you’ll see evidence of the
marked improvement in our top-line growth. This is a
desirable trend and is the result of positive actions we've
taken. For example, in 2000 we established a new posi-
tion in the field called the personal lines sales specialist,
which we expanded in earnest in 2001. This was done in
recognition of the fact that our commercial lines field pres-
ence was enormously effective in generating new, prof-
itable business in that segment, but left us with no one to
focus attention on promoting our personal lines products
and services. As a consequence, sales of personal lines
— and especially profitable private passenger auto — lan-
guished. As predicted, the assignment of experienced
associates to this new position made all the difference as
our agents were updated on our programs and our desire
to be a personal lines market of choice. We are once
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Robert H. Moone,
President, CEQ, and
Chairman of the Board

again growing our private passenger segment.

The expense ratio is a function of written premium and
costs. As already stated, we enjoyed an outstanding top-
line growth year. On the expense side we continued to
keep a firm hand on all costs, including new hires. This
combination should logically produce an improvement in
the statutory expense ratio. However, as displayed on the
graph on page 7 in this report, changes to intercompany
agreements (described later) caused an uptick for 2001.

Needless to say, no discussion of 2001 can be complete
without some mention of the despicable attack of
September 11. While your company suffered only two
very minor losses (both personal lines), the impact of the
event did have short-term consequences on sales and
productivity. At the end of the day we are pleased to be a
part of an industry that performed so marvelously, just as
it has responded to every disaster in the past.

Beyond this, there were two other major events for us at
State Auto. While each of these primarily involved State
Auto Mutual, your company’s parent and majority share-
holder, there is no question that they directly affected
State Auto Financial. First was the disagreement with the
Ohio Department of Insurance (ODI) relating to the
January 1, 2000 Management and Operations
Agreement, and the fees attendant thereto. Second was
the consummation of the merger between State Auto
Mutual and Meridian Mutual and State Auto Mutual's
acquisition of the Meridian Group.

The dispute with ODI over the fee provisions in the man-
agement agreement with State Auto Mutual and other
affiliates did have implications for STFC since State Auto
Mutual had been obliged to pay certain service fees to a
subsidiary of STFC. This fee income provided significant
non-insurance revenue to STFC. After exhaustive discus-
sions between the parties, the matter was resolved during
the fourth quarter with an QOctober 1, 2001 amendment to
the management agreement that eliminated the service
fee going forward. Another aspect of the resolution of this
disagreement involved an amendment to the State Auto
pooling agreement along with a relatively temporary stop
loss reinsurance arrangement between State Auto Mutual
as the reinsurer and insurer affiliates of STFC as the com-
panies reinsured. The pooling change increased State
Auto Financial’s portion of the State Auto poo! from 53%




to 80%, while the stop loss temporarily softens the
impact of adverse losses to the pool that may result from
the former Meridian Mutual book or other causes during
a 27-month transitional period.

This is a significant development given the historic per-
formance of the companies. To the extent we continue to
be resolute and successful in attaining an underwriting
profit, the benefit to STFC is magnified by the additional
27 points flowing to your company. Of course, the oppo-
site is equally true. That s, if we do not achieve profitable
results, a larger percentage of losses will be attributed to
STFC. To a greater extent than ever before, our destiny
is in our hands as underwriters and we relish the oppor-
tunity.

The Meridian merger, announced on October 25, 2000,
was effected June 1, 2001. That event created a insur-
ance company group with more than $1 billion in premi-
um, nearly $1 billion in surplus and $2 billion in assets:
the 48th largest property/casualty insurance group in the
country! As discussed above and described in more
detail elsewhere in this report, we found it necessary to
adjust certain Meridian case reserves to a greater extent
than we had anticipated. Still, we feel confident the deal
was sound for all constituencies. This assessment is
magnified every time we visit the Indianapolis campus
and meet with those outstanding associates who are
clearly excited about the process of creating a profitable
segment and convinced of their ultimate success. Itis a
treat indeed to watch this metamorphosis taking place.

The year 2001 was, like all years past and future, filled
with challenges — some unexpected — as well as oppor-
tunities. In every case, the talented management team
with whom | have the privilege to work systematically
addressed these issues, broke them down to their com-
ponent parts and arrived at solutions that allowed the
company to emerge stronger than before. As a result,
those three measures of performance on which we
remain totally focused — underwriting results, written pre-
mium growth and expense control — continue to paint a
portrait of a company that is performing not just better
than the property/casualty industry, but one that is
achieving the lofty objectives we have set for ourselves.

Sincerely,

[ortekb H Aloome

Robert H. Moone, CPCU
Chairman of the Board
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Selected Financial Data as of 12/31/01

Market Price......coooiiviiieiiiici e $16.24
52-week high-low range...........ccocceeonin, $17.80 -12.30
2001 basic/diluted earnings per share........... $0.53/$0.52
P/E 1810, i e s 30.6x
Market capitalization............cc.ccooeeiriveninne $632 million
Shares outstanding......ccccccoiviiiiiiiiii e 38.9 million
Estimated float........cooviiii i 12.60 million
Book value/share..........cccoceeriveiiiiiiiiec e $10.28
Price/book value.........cccoeiivieiii e 1.6x
Return on average equity........cococovvvieeerieicciieennreenn 5.2%
Quarterly dividend.......c..cocccniicinniniie e $0.0325
Average daily trading volume..................... 30,416 shares”

*Source: Bloomberg
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- Year in Review

Performance

State Auto Financial
Corporation’s statutory combined
ratio for 2001 was 105.2, ending
STFC’s incredible string of six
straight years of a statutory com-
bined ratio of 100.0 or better. Total
operating revenues for the year
were $623,287,000, a 34.7%
increase over 2000's total. Total
net income from operations was
$19,300,000, a 56.4% decrease
from 2000’s total. STFC’s total
assets as of December 31, 2001,
were $1,367,400,000, a 52.3%
increase over 2000. Shareholder
equity grew 3.7% to $400,200,000.
The impressive growth and the
uncharacteristically unimpressive
underwriting results were largely
attributable to one development:
the acquisition of Meridian Mutual
Insurance Company (“Meridian”).
Despite Meridian’s severe loss
ratio problems in 2001 — that were
exacerbated by our addressing
prior years claims reserve defi-
ciencies — we remain convinced
the acquisition will benefit share-
holders. This confidence is
enhanced by substantially
improved performance of the
Meridian book early in 2002.

The company’s underwriting
results, absent the Meridian busi-
ness, were excellent. STFC is
enjoying the best opportunity in a
decade to select and write new
business in both commercial and
personal lines. After many years
of industry price slashing that
sometimes defied reason, the
commercial markets hardened
considerably and the competition
had to “come back” to those com-
panies, like STFC, that had main-

tained responsible pricing. In the
latter half of 2001 we recorded dou-
ble-digit growth in commercial lines
and did so without compromising
our stringent underwriting stan-
dards. As was the case in 2001,
we will continue in 2002 to pursue
increases in the effective rate per
exposure on new and renewal busi-
ness.

On the personal lines front we
grew throughout 2001, reversing a
two-year period of stagnation.
Market conditions and the efforts of
those in the new personal lines
sales specialist positions (see page
10) were the keys to our success.
STFC’s personal auto products con-
tinue to generate solid profits, so
growth in the personal lines portfolio
cannot be understated when evalu-
ating its effect on our overall perfor-
mance as a company. The home-
owners line, however, is still a prob-
lem for the industry and us. Our
focus on homeowners results culmi-
nated in the creation of a new
homeowners program called
Options that is being introduced in
2002. |t offers broad coverages and
we believe is priced responsibly.

Products

Commercial lines products pro-
duce nearly 50% of all STFC premi-
um dollars. Ten years ago, that per-
centage was closer to 30. Our
rapid growth in commercial lines is
the result of superior service and
our emphasis on field underwriting.
We've also become an industry
leader in commercial product devel-
opment. In March 2001 we
unveiled the BusinessOwners’
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Choice™ package policy. “Strong
coverage, flexible coverage and
easy to use” were the three prima-
ry objectives behind this product,
which is perhaps the most innova-
tive businessowners’ policy in the
industry today. In addition to more
traditional means of customizing
property and liability protection,
agents and their clients can build a
discounted coverage package,
uniguely tailored to the customer’s
needs, through the “Your Choice”
option. This unprecedented feature
offers agents and their business
customers the ability to select a
total limit for coverage “extras” and
then build up to that limit from over
two dozen coverage options.

Not only is coverage flexibility
accomplished through this new
packaging technique, we've
expanded the number of optional
coverages to roughly three times
the options offered in our soon-to-
be obsolete Series One
Businessowners Policy. As a
result, our agents can offer their
business clients stronger, more
flexible insurance protection than
before. While we are proud of
offering greater coverage strength
and flexibility, we were also
pleased to provide greater clarity
for our policyholders by listing
more detailed coverage informa-
tion on the “declarations page.”
Traditionally, this policy document
has provided only a high-level
summary of policy coverages.

The BusinessOwners’ Choice™,
however, itemizes virtually all poli-
cy coverages, making it easier for
policyholders to identify their own
protection plan. We also believe




that equipping our insureds with
these innovative declarations
pages will make it more difficult for
competitors to sell against our
product, resulting in stronger
account retention and premium
growth.

On top of this product develop-
ment, we dramatically improved
our transaction or processing effi-
ciency for commercial lines. Our
agents now have the ability to
guote and submit businessowners
policies over the Internet.
Producers and customer service
representatives can enter basic
policy data for quoting purposes
and, subsequently, more detailed
information to complete policy
issuance. Not only does this fea-
ture result in greater efficiency for
our agents, it produces greater
accuracy - and thus greater effi-
ciency - for the company as policy
details do not have to be re-
entered into our policy issuance
system.

Another significant commercial
lines innovation saw us add 12
new coverages and bolster the lim-
its in eight others found in our
Preferred Business Package
(PBP) Plus endorsement. The
PBP has always been a popular
and important part of our commer-
cial product line. The Plus
endorsement, which now compris-
es over 30 coverages, should
make the PBP even more attrac-
tive to the consumer. As is our
practice, we have priced the PBP
Plus to ensure that we capture a
premium commensurate with the
risk.

On the personal lines side, we
concentrated on process in 2001.
In all but a few states we have
implemented two new discount
levels for homeowners business
based on the applicant’s insurance
credit score. The remaining states
will be rolled out in early 2002.
We also applied credit scoring to
our new non-standard auto busi-
ness through a program called
Blue Chip. Insurance credit scor-

ing is attractive to underwriters
because it allows them to request
a premium that is commensurate
with the risk they are assuming. In
our opinion, it is the most accurate
underwriting risk evaluation and
selection tool available today.
Contrary to the speculation of
some self-appointed “consumer
advocates,” the use of credit scor-
ing has allowed us to broaden the
scope of underwriting acceptability
and lowered the price for the
majority of our new business cus-
tomers. Nevertheless, use of this
new tool has been nearly revenue
neutral in that it allows us to
charge a more adequate rate for
more loss-prone drivers,
Beginning in 1996, State Auto
began concentrating its personal
lines marketing efforts on the Baby
Boomer generation. The result
was a package of discounts and
coverages on auto and homes that
we called Prime of Life. Originally
aimed at the 50 and over market
segment, it was expanded in 2001
to include the 45-49 age group.
This has been a very profitable
market for us. The graph below
demonstrates our success in
growing this book of business.

--continued on page 10
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STFC Chairman and CEO Robert H. Moone
(second from left) is flanked by the
company's senior vice presidents: left to
right, Mark Blackburn, director-insurance
operations; Steve Johnston, treasurer and
chief financial officer; and John Lowther,
secretary and general counsel.
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--continued from page 9

Sales and Sales-Related
Activities

The impressive revenue growth
we enjoyed in 2001 is largely
attributable to the Meridian Mutual
merger. But it is important to point
out that what we call internal or
“organic” growth for all companies
managed and owned by STFC
was up 8.3% or $80 million for the
year. Even without the Meridian
acquisition, this would have been
our biggest growth year in history,
including other acquisition years
(Milbank in 1993, Midwest in 1997
and Farmers Casualty in 1999).
Total written premium, including
the Meridian acquisition,
increased 42.9%, or $172.2 mil-
lion.

We recognize that much of the
growth in our business has to
come from new agents, so
appointing new agencies - well-
managed, consumer-oriented,
highly professional agencies - is
always an important annual goal
for STFC and State Auto. For
2001, we set an objective to
appoint 108 new agencies. We
reached that number by July and
kept going. By year end, we had
appointed 156. Our ability to
attract quality agents has much to
do with our history of stability. In
turbulent times, we are especially
attractive to agents who are look-
ing for a company that can consis-
tently provide competitive, open
markets. Offering this advantage
to independent agents can only
arise from profitable underwriting
operations.

The companies’ PaceSetter
Program for new producers cele-
brated its fifth year and tenth class
in September 2001. PaceSetter
has produced in excess of $10 mil-
lion in written premium for State
Auto during its brief history, and
has recently garnered national
attention within the industry as a
highly successful sales and techni-
cal training process.
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Last year we created a new posi-
tion called the personal lines sales
specialist. The associates
assigned to this new role are dedi-
cated to promoting our personal
lines products to our agents
through education, technical assis-
tance and sales assistance. By
year-end, the position’s ranks had
grown from five to 16. All of these
specialists played a major role in
our positive personal lines growth
in 2001 - the first year of true mar-
ket share growth in the profitable
personal auto segment in almost
five years. The program will con-
tinue to expand in 2002.

Information Technology

We continue to increase the
number of agencies that interact
with State Auto electronically. Our
agent extranet, AgentSite, was
greatly expanded in 2001 to
include software downloads, mar-
keting information and online rat-
ing and submission of our new
businessowners product,
BusinessOwners’ Choice™. As a
result, more than 4,400 agents,
representing over 1,600 agencies,
are now registered users on the
site.

Our BusinessOwners’ Choice™
policy breaks new ground for State
Auto, becoming our first product to
offer rating over the Internet. It
allows our agency partners to rate
a policy, print a proposal for the
client, print a completed applica-
tion and submit the policy to our
processing system over the
Internet. Although not yet avail-
able in all State Auto operating
states, hundreds of agencies are
now using the system daily.

Another innovation in 2001 was
providing our agents the ability to
order certain personal lines
reports online, using our ExSell®
desktop rating software and an
Internet connection. By the end of
2001, more than 1,000 such real-
time orders were taking place

each workday, increasing the ease
of doing business with State Auto
and contributing to enhanced
agent satisfaction.

We continue to pursue greater
download and upload of personal
lines business with our agency
partners. As of December 31,
2001, we provided download to
1,377 agencies, and uploaded with
822. Further increases are
expected in 2002, as former
Meridian agencies begin writing
business on State Auto systems.
Internet-based personal lines rat-
ing and submission are also
planned in 2002.

A major focus of attention in
2001 was planning the integration
of Meridian and State Auto pro-
cessing systems. We anticipate
running both Indianapolis and
Columbus systems on one main-
frame, in Columbus, by June 2002.
The automated conversion of busi-
ness to State Auto’s rates, rules
and forms is planned to begin, on
a state-by-state basis, this sum-
mer.

Maintaining critical information
electronically, in one place, contin-
ues to be a key objective. Qur
GAIN system, a networked data-
base that contains all the informa-
tion for our agency partners, pro-
vides critical security for our
AgentSite extranet. In 2001 we
began to backfeed our other lega-
cy processing systems with infor-
mation contained in GAIN, a par-
ticular benefit as we faced the
challenge of adding 1,600 former
Meridian agencies.

Similarly, our Maobius document
archive provides quick desktop
access to all policy forms, billing
information, scanned documents
and even emails and faxes, mak-
ing us “paperless” in all major
lines. An interactive voice
response system implemented in
2001 now gives agents and palicy-
holders up-to-date information on
payment status, 24 hours a day,
from our billing system.

--continued on page 12

Giving credit where credit

is due

If the industry has a hot button for
2002, it’s likely to be insurance
credit scoring, a newer and pre-
ferred method for many insurers to
underwrite personal lines risks,
both auto and homeowners.

One of our basic tenets as a
responsible insurance company is
to match price to risk. We believe
that subsidy should be minimized,
and equity maximized. While tra-
ditional underwriting criteria have
allowed us to achieve this to a
degree, insurance bureau (credit)
scoring enables us to fine tune the
process. We accomplish this
through both underwriting and rat-
ing with insurance bureau scores.
We began using insurance credit
scores in our underwriting late in
1999. Using credit as a rating tool
began early in 2001. We can
report that, as a result of using
this supplementary tool, a majority
of our customers enjoyed premi-
um discounts. Some, of course,
saw higher premiums. That's what
happens when you price a prod-
uct individually, based on the risk
you’re assuming.

Most property-casualty insurance
companies strive to obtain ade-
quate premiums to cover expected
losses. We believe that's the only
way o run an insurance company.
State Auto will continue to price its
products such that, through careful
expense management and intelli-
gent risk selection, we will be abie
to make an underwriting profit. We
can achieve these pricing levels
using traditional underwriting tools,
with or without credit scoring in the
mix. “With,” however, would
appear to be the fairest approach
for consumers and the most accu-
rate approach for companies.
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--continued from page 11

Claims

It may be stating the obvious, but
people buy insurance to provide
protection for themselves in the
event of a covered loss. An insur-
ance company proves its value
when such a loss occurs.
Providing excellent claims service
was a founding principle of State
Auto and remains a proud tradi-
tion. We are constantly working to
exceed our already high stan-
dards for providing the best claims
service possible.

Our Contact Center makes it
easier for agents or insureds to
report their losses to us. They
can do this anytime of the day or
night. Our Central Claims
Department (CCD) provides an
effective way for us to handle the
numerous smaller, less complicat-
ed claims we receive. The
expanded hours of the CCD
means our claims handling ser-
vices are available when our
agents and insureds need us.
This frees up the more experi-
enced claims personnel who are
spread throughout our operating
area, close to agents and
insureds, to handle the more com-
plicated and larger claims.

During 2001, we began the
process of bringing our new part-
ners in Indianapolis into the State
Auto claims handling tradition. We
have introduced them to our prac-
tices and procedures. They will
be receiving training on State Auto
systems. We are coordinating our
efforts and consolidating services
and vendors to enhance service
while improving efficiency and
economy.

Additionally, during 2001, we
expanded our automated claims
handling system to our Eastern,
Cincinnati and Des Moines
offices. This means all branch
and regional offices (with the
exception of Indianapolis) now
have automated claims handling
capacity. This system will be intro-
duced to Indianapolis in 2002.

The CCbx
central o eur
calms suceess
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The Stock

STFC reached a milestone in
2001: ten years as a public com-
pany. By all measures, STFC has
proved an excellent choice for
long-term investors. The stock’s
price has risen from an IPO price
of $2.25 per share, split adjusted,
to a year-end 2001 price of
$16.24. This is a total return of
622%, an average annual return
of 21% for the period.

Of course, like any investment,
there are fluctuations in value. In
2001, the total return to investors
for STFC was minus 8.4%. The
table below highlights the compa-
ny’s average annual return com-
pared to the Standard and Poor’s
(S&P 500 Index) and the S&P
Property and Casualty Index for
one year, three years and ten

years ending 12-31-01.

STFC has an ongoing investor
relations program designed to pro-
vide information to all investors,
both individual and institutional.
This program includes presenta-
tions at investor conferences,
quarterly conference calls to dis-
cuss earnings per share releases
and hosting investor education
and information sessions in the
Columbus home office. In
November 2001, STFC conducted
an all-day Investor Forum where
analysts and investors were able
to meet and discuss corporate
strategies with the company’s
senior management.

All of these presentations — quar-
terly conference calls included —
were and will continue to be Web

cast. Most STFC Web casts are
archived for 30 to 90 days,
depending on the event, and may
be accessed at the companies’
Web sites, www.stfc.com and
www.stateauto.com.

In March of 2002, the Board of
Directors of STFC authorized the
repurchase of up to 1 million
shares of STFC common stock
over a period extending to and
through December 31, 2003. This
should be interpreted as a sign
that the company considers its
own stock an excellent value on
today’s market. And the first quar-
ter of 2002 marked the 43rd
straight quarter that STFC has
paid a dividend — every quarter of
its existence.

£806—

Shareholder Return*

Asset Distribution

*Value of $100 invested
June 28, 1991 including
reinvested dividends.

] { | ! { T
1991 1992 1993 1994

1 [

1995 1996 1997 1998 1889 2000 2001

One Year Three Years Ten Years
STFC -8.4% 10.49% 21.21%
S&P 500 Index -11.79% -1.03% 12.78%
S&P P&C Index -7.64% 2.08% 10.48%
Cumulative Total

Accrued Income
and Misc. Assets
14.5%

Cash and
Cash Equivalents
TR 2.2%

Stocks
4.4%

Bond Portfolio

U.S. Governments
. 7.0%

U.S. Government
Agencies

Investment Grade & 3.7%

Corporates
and
Municipals
89.3%
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a famous name, a strong history, a great addition

Since the establishment of State
Auto Financial Corporation in
1991, the State Auto Group has
considered acquisition to be an
important part of its growth strate-
gy. State Auto Mutual purchased
Milbank Insurance Company in
1993; in July 1998, STFC
acquired Milbank through a stock
exchange. State Auto Mutual pur-
chased Midwest Security
Insurance Company in 1997.
STFC purchased Farmers
Casualty Insurance Company in
1999. On June 1, 2001, State
Automobile Mutual Insurance
Company merged with Meridian
Mutual Insurance Company. The
Meridian Group was structured
similarly to the State Auto Group.
The parent, Meridian Mutual,
owned 48% of the outstanding
shares of the publicly traded
Meridan Insurance Group, Inc.
(MIGI). At the time of closing,
State Auto Mutual already owned
9% of the MIGI shares.
Concurrent with the merger of the
mutual parents, the surviving
mutual, State Auto Mutual,
aquired the remaining 43% shares
of MIGI. This was by far the
largest acquisition in State Auto’s
history, surpassing by three times
the combined Milbank, Midwest
and Farmers acquisitions.

On July 1, 2001, the Meridian
business entered the State Auto

pool, 53% of which was appor-
tioned to State Auto Financial
Corporation-held companies. In
October 2001, State Auto Mutual
resolved its disagreement with the
Ohio Department of Insurance
regarding the service fee under the
management agreement. The res-
olution included the three following
elements, each of which was
approved effective October 1, 2001,

e Eliminate the operations
management fee paid by Mutual
to STFC.

e Increase STFC’s share of the
State Auto pool from 53% to
80%.

o Establish a stop loss reinsur-
ance program between Mutual
and certain of STFC'’s
subsidiaries.

As a result of these changes,
STFC’s year-end 2001 results saw
net written premiums increase to
$726.8 million and invested assets
increase to $1.1 billion. STFC has
nearly doubled in size in one year.
We have also given up the relative-
ly consistent insurance manage-
ment fee income for the opportuni-
ty to achieve higher earnings from
a significantly larger book of busi-
ness and higher pooling percent-
age.

The stop loss reinsurance agree-
ment between State Auto Mutual
and STFC, effective October 1,
2001, smoothes the volatility
inherent with the significant premi-
um volume increase resulting from
STFC assuming 80% of the State
Auto pool. The stop loss reinsur-
ance treaty works as follows: If
the State Auto pool produces a
loss ratio from 70.75% to 80%,
then State Auto Mutual will
assume 27% of the losses
exceeding 70.75% up to 80%.

If the State Auto pool produces
profit with a loss ratio 60.00% to
69.25%, then the STFC compa-
nies will pay State Auto Mutual
27% of the profit. The stop loss
reinsurance contract will remain in
force for nine quarters (until
12/31/03). STFC'’s loss ratio for
the fourth quarter 2001 exceeded
80% and STFC recovered $6.2
million from State Auto Mutual,
per this reinsurance agreement.

The integration of Meridian and
State Auto is challenging, reward-
ing and proceeding well. Meridian
business has historically produced
results more like the industry’s
loss experience than the State
Auto book, and strong underwrit-
ing results are the hallmark of
State Auto. The Meridian book
has already undergone a dramatic
improvement through the strength-
ening of the claims case reserves



and the termination of certain
loss-prone programs. Combined
Meridian and State Auto claims
personnel reviewed nearly 14,000
open claims during the last six
months of 2001 and added
approximately $36 million to
reserves. While this was a painful
exercise, addressing the situation
in the first year of the acquisition
positions STFC to enter 2002 with
a strong balance sheet and
income statement.

Meridian also discontinued the
Group Advantage® program, which
allowed shoppers at Sam’s Clubs
to buy auto and homeowners
insurance at in-store kiosks.
Group Advantage® had great sales
but very poor loss experience,
producing a foss ratio of 140.5%
for 2000 and 458.0% for 2001. At
year-end 2000 there were roughly
15,000 Group Advantage® policies
in force. At year-end 2001 there
were approximately 800 Group
Advantage® policies in force and
these policies are expected to be
non-renewed during 2002.

Meridian’s non-standard auto
product, cailed Acclaim, also pro-
duced significant underwriting
losses. An integration plan is cur-
rently in place that will move pro-
cessing of all Acclaim business to
State Auto National, State Auto’s
non-standard company processing
platform. More importantly, all new
non-standard business will be
issued by State Auto National. The
National system features “point-
of-sale” underwriting including
credit scoring. Agents can obtain
a prospective customer's accident
history and credit information
when the customer applies for a
policy, allowing the agent to give
the customer a timely and accu-
rate rate quote in the agent’s
office. Through February of 2002,
six of the 12 states that had
Meridian Acclaim business have
been moved to the State Auto
National platform and the remain-
ing six states will have migrated to
State Auto National by the end of
2002.

Work is also well under way to
improve the Meridian commercial

Bordering on the sublime

In many cases, it’s a narrow border crossing for former Meridian
agencies now being integrated into the State Auto family. That
border is practically non-existent for agent Jerry Diis, principal of
the RMD/Patti Agency in Richmond, Ind. A successful Meridian
agent since 1994, Dils is looking forward to the affiliation and cre-
ating a presence for State Auto in his community.

Dils is standing in front of his former high school in College
Corner, half of which is in Ohio, the other half in Indiana. Though
straddling the two states, the agency principal is undivided in his
outiook toward the future, and the expanding opportunities for his
$21-million, two-location enterprise.

“We’re looking forward to our ‘merger,’ and feel very positive
about the future,” he said. An insurance industry veteran of nearly
40 years, Dils shares responsibility for his agency with Vice
President Tim Vanderpool and Secretary/Treasurer Rick Niersbach,

and 37 other associates.

book. State Auto has a practice of
reviewing the rate level for each
line of business in each operating
state every year. Applying this
same practice, as well as adjust-
ing discretionary pricing variables,
to the Meridian commercial book
produced a 17% increase on the
book’s rate per insured exposure
during the fourth quarter of 2001.
We can’t pretend that we are not
excited that the State Auto
Insurance Companies have
become, with the addition of the
Meridian companies, a $1 billion-
plus insurance group. Certainly,
there are advantages to growing

larger if that growth is intelligently
managed. But the State Auto-
Meridan integration is about more
than numbers. It's about people
and philosophies and opportuni-
ties. The Meridian companies
have added a wealth of talent to
an already impressive employee
group. The Meridan name has
opened markets that were previ-
ously hard to penetrate. The
Meridian products have expanded
our portfolios and made us that
much more attractive to con-
sumers and agents. Undoubtedly,
the Meridian Mutual merger
enhances the future prospects of
State Auto and STFC.
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STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company)

Selected Consolidated Financial Data

Year ended December 31

2009~ 198g*  1988* 1987 1996 18895* 1994

Statements of Income Data: (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Earned premiums $ 555,207 397,967 392,058 356,210 320,050 304,472 296,364 225,297
Net investment income $ 47,375 34,262 32,506 31,107 29,863 28461 22,189
Management services income $ 15,586 8,727 7,945 7,367 6,774 6,377 5,170
Net realized gains on investments  $ 1,962 2,555 2,925 3,043 2,788 1,758 1,595
Other income $ 3,142 3,269 2,473 1,409 1,200 525 147
Total revenues $ 623,272 440,871 402,059 362,976 345,097 333,485 254,398
Income before federal incometaxes $ 17,976 56,085 49,605 56,638 34,792 40,953 20,294
Net income $ 20,615 42,816 37,497 40,998 26,407 29,894 15,835
Earnings per common share@:

Basic $ 0.53 1.05 0.89 0.99 0.64 0.73 0.39

Diluted $ 0.52 1.03 0.87 097 = 0.63 0.72 0.39
Cash dividends per common share!’ $ 0.13 ~0.11 0.10 0.09 0.08 0.07 0.06
Balance Sheet Data at Year End:
Total investments $1,138,656 627,305 579,966 526,363 499,277 479,908 350,639
Total assets $1,367,496 759,945 717,520 664,384 605,385 579,194 487,282
Note payable to affiliate $ 45,500 45,500 — — — — —
Total stockholders’ equity $ 400,193 317,687 340,824 297,258 247,619 225,763 175,852
Book value per common share! $ 10.28 8.29 8.11 7.11 5.98 5.48 4.29
Statutory Ratios:
Loss ratio 77.4 67.4 68.4 65.2 72.7 68.6 75.4
Expense ratio 27.8 29.5 29.4 28.9 27.3 31.0 28.2
Combined ratio 105.2 86.9 97.8 94.1 100.0 996 103.6
Industry combined ratio® 118.0 107.7 105.6 101.6 105.8 106.5 108.5
Ratio of net premiums written to

statutory capital and surplus 1.81 1.47 1.63 1.71 1.91 212 1.77

(1) Adjusted for a July 1998 2-for-1 common stock split as well as a July 1996 3-for-2 common stock split effected |

in the form of a stock dividend.

(2) The earnings per share amounts prior to 1997 have been restated as required to comply with SFAS No. 128.
(3) Preliminary industry information for 2001 from A.M. Best.

" Reflects change in Pooling Arrangement, effective October 1, 2001, January 1, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1995.
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STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company)

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuilts of Operations

Overview

State Auto Financial Corporation (“State Auto
Financial”), through its principal insurance subsidiaries,
State Auto Property and Casualty Insurance Company
(“State Auto P&C”), Milbank Insurance Company
(“Milbank”), Farmers Casualty Insurance Company
("Farmers Casualty”) and State Auto Insurance
Company (“SAIC™), provides personal and commercial
insurance for the standard insurance market primarily
in the central and eastern United States, excluding
New York, New Jersey, and the New England states.
Their principal lines of business include personal and
commercial auto, homeowners, commercial multi-peril,
workers' compensation, general liability and fire insur-
ance. State Auto National Insurance Company
{(“National”) and Mid-Plains Insurance Company (“Mid-
Plains”) write personal automobile insurance for risks
in the nonstandard insurance market. State Auto P&C,
Milbank, Farmers Casualty, SAIC, National and Mid-
Plains products are marketed through independent
agents. State Auto Financial is a majority-owned sub-
sidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company
(*Mutual™), an Ohio domiciled property and casualty
insurer. State Auto Financial and its subsidiaries are
referred to collectively herein as the “Company.”

Through State Auto P&C, the Company provides
management and operations services under the
Midwest Management Agreement (as defined below),
the Farmers Casualty Management Agreement (as
defined below) and the Mutual Management
Agreement (as defined below) each effective as of
January 1, 2000 (collectively the “2000 Management
Agreement”), for insurance and noninsurance affiliates.
As of January 1, 2000, al! individuals providing services
to any of the State Auto Companies who were not
already employees of State Auto P&C became employ-
ees of State Auto P&C. Under the 2000 Management
Agreement, State Auto P&C through its employees, is
responsible for performing all organizational, opera-
tional, and management functions for each of the man-
aged companies. For its performance of these ser-
vices, State Auto P&C was paid quarterly a manage-
ment and operations services fee based on formulas
outlined in the 2000 Management Agreement. This fee
from a managed company would be withheld if a man-
aged company’s performance did not meet perfor-
mance criteria set forth in the 2000 Management
Agreement. In early 2001, the Ohio Department of
Insurance (the “ODI") requested that Mutual file an

analysis with the ODI on a quarterly basis, starting with
the gquarter beginning January 1, 2001, that justified
the apportionment of the service fee paid by Mutual to
State Auto P&C under the Mutual Management
Agreement under accounting guidance outlined in
Statement of Statutory Accounting Principles No. 70 -
Allocation of Expenses (“SSAP No. 70”). The Company
believed its accounting for such service fee was con-
sistent with all statutory accounting principals. On
October 24, 2001, the board of directors of the
Company and Mutual and special independent com-
mittees thereof approved a resolution of the disagree-
ment between the Company and the ODI regarding the
service fee paid by Mutual to State Auto P&C. The dis-
agreement with ODI was resolved and ODI expressly
did not take issue with Mutual's payment of the service
fee for the first three quarters of 2001, which amounted
to $12.5 million, pre-tax, nor with Mutual’s accounting
for the service fee in each of those quarters. The ODI
also approved regulatory filings, effective October 1,
2001, implementing a revised Mutual Management
Agreement, changing the Pooled Subsidiaries (defined
below) pooling participation percentages and imple-
menting a stop loss reinsurance arrangement.

Effective October 1, 2001, the Mutual Management
Agreement was amended to eliminate the management
and operations service fee charged by State Auto P&C
to participants to the agreement, including Mutual. The
Mutual Management Agreement continues to allocate
costs and apportion those costs among the parties to
the agreement in accordance with terms outlined there-
in. As a result of the loss of the management and oper-
ations services income under the Mutual Management
Agreement, substantially all of State Auto P&C’s ser-
vices income has been eliminated effective October 1,
2001. Consequently, beginning with the first quarter
2002, the management and operations services seg-
ment wili be included in the other category for segment
reporting as the results of this segment will no longer
meet the quantitative thresholds for separate presenta-
tion as a reportable segment. See “Reportable
Segments” included herein and footnote 14 regarding
the Company’s operating segments included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.

As noted above, as part of the resolution of the ser-
vice fee disagreement with ODI, ODI approved an
amendment to the Pooling Arrangement (defined
below) in which the Pooled Subsidiaries aggregate
participation was increased from 53% to 80% effective
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October 1, 2001. In conjunction with this change in
pool participation, the Pooled Subsidiaries received
cash of $2.2 million and fixed maturities totaling $236.3
million from Mutual, which related to the additional net
insurance liabilities assumed by the Pooled
Subsidiaries on October 1, 2001. Additionally, for the
period October 1, 2001 through December 31, 2003,
Mutual entered into a stop loss reinsurance arrange-
ment (the “Stop Loss”) with the Pooled Subsidiaries.
Under the Stop Loss, Mutual has agreed to participate
in the Pooling Arrangement’s quarterly underwriting
losses and gains in the manner described. If the
Pooling Arrangement’s statutory loss and loss adjust-
ment expense ratio (the “loss ratio”) is between
70.75% and 80.00% (after the application of all avail-
able reinsurance), Mutual will reinsure the Pooled
Subsidiaries 27% of the Pooling Arrangement’s losses
in excess of a loss ratio of 70.75% up to 80.00%. The
Pooled Subsidiaries would be responsible for their
share of the Pooling Arrangement’s losses over the
80.00% threshold. Also, Mutua! will have the right to
participate in the profits of the Pooling Arrangement.
Mutual will assume 27% of the Pooling Arrangement’s
underwriting profits attributable to loss ratios less than
69.25%, but more than 59.99%.

The Midwest Management Agreement and the
Farmers Casualty Management agreement were not
affected by the disagreement with the ODI or its reso-
lution.

Pursuant to the 2000 Management Agreement, in
2000, the Company received cash of $28.1 million
equal to the net pension and post-retirement plan ben-
efit liabilities assumed relating to the above described
transfer of those individuals who were employees of
Mutual as of December 31, 1999. Prior to January 1,
2000, State Auto P&C provided only executive man-
agement services to all insurance affiliates.

The Midwest Management Agreement is a manage-
ment agreement under which State Auto P&C provides
management and operations services to Midwest
Security Insurance Company, a Wisconsin domiciled,
wholly owned subsidiary of Mutual ("Midwest
Security”). The Farmers Casualty Management
Agreement is a management agreement under which
State Auto P&C provides management and operations
services to Farmers Casualty and Mid-Plains. The
Mutual Management Agreement is a management
agreement under which State Auto P&C provides man-
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agement and operations services to Mutual, Milbank,
National and SAIC, and other non-insurance affiliates.

In 1998, State Auto Financial acquired all of the
outstanding shares of Milbank from Mutual pursuant to
the Option Agreement dated August 1993. The pur-
chase price of Milbank was approximately $81.9 mil-
lion. The transaction was effected through an
exchange with Mutual of approximately 5.1 million
State Auto Financial common shares for all the issued
and outstanding capital stock of Milbank. This
exchange of Milbank shares for State Auto Financial
common shares increased Mutual’s ownership of State
Auto Financial to approximately 70% of its issued and
outstanding shares. Since the transaction was a com- -
bination of entities under common control, it has been
accounted for similar to a pooling of interests.

In August 1998, State Auto Financial purchased
$9.0 million of surplus notes from Farmers Casualty
Company Mutual (“FCCM”), an lowa domiciled proper-
ty casualty insurer for the standard insurance market.
in 1998, a plan to convert FCCM into a stock insurance
company was approved by the board of FCCM, its
policyholders and the lowa Division of Insurance. The
plan of conversion provided that State Auto Financial,
in exchange for the redemption of the surplus notes,
would acquire the newly issued shares of Farmers
Casualty. Effective January 1, 1999, FCCM, renamed
Farmers Casualty Insurance Company, became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of State Auto Financial. In
addition, Farmers Casualty owns 100% of the out-
standing shares of Mid-Plains, an lowa domiciled
property casualty insurer, which principally writes non-
standard auto insurance.

SAIC was formed in 1999 to engage in the business
of providing standard personal insurance to its policy-
holders through the use of leading edge technology
within the independent agency system. Effective
January 1, 2000, SAIC became licensed as a property
and casualty insurer and began operating in the state
of Ohio.

Through Stateco Financial Services, Inc.
(“Stateco”), a wholly-owned subsidiary, the Company
provides investment management services to affiliated
companies and also provides insurance premium
finance services to commercial policyholders of State
Auto P&C, Milbank and Mutual.

Through Strategic Insurance Software, Inc. (S.1.S.),
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a wholly-owned subsidiary, the Company develops
and sells software for the processing of insurance
transactions, database management systems for-insur-
ance agents and electronic interfacing of information
between insurance companies and agents. S.I.S. sells
its services and products to affiliated companies and
their agents and markets similar services and products
to nonaffiliated insurers and their agencies.

518 Property Management and Leasing, LLC (518
PML), an Ohio limited liability company, is engaged in
the business of owning and leasing real and personal
property to affiliated companies. The members of 518
PML are State Auto P&C and Stateco.

State Auto P&C, Milbank, Farmers Casualty and
SAIC (the “Pooled Subsidiaries”), State Auto
Financial’s companies comprising the standard insur-
ance segment, participate in a quota share reinsurance
pooling arrangement (the “Pooling Arrangement”) with
Mutual. The Pooling Arrangement provides that the
Pooled Subsidiaries cede to Mutual all of their insur-
ance business and assume from Mutual an amount
equal to their respective participation percentages as
outlined in the Pooling Arrangement. Effective January
1, 1998, the Pooled Subsidiaries aggregate participa-
tion in the Pooling Arrangement increased from 45% to
47% (State Auto P&C - 37% and Milbank - 10%) and
Midwest Security became a participant in the Pooling
Arrangement. On January 1, 1999, Farmers Casualty
was acquired by State Auto Financial and became a
participant in the Pooling Arrangement on that same
date, at which time the Pooled Subsidiaries’ aggregate
participation increased to 50% (State Auto P&C -
37%, Milbank — 10% and Farmers Casualty — 3%). In
conjunction with these changes in pool participation,
the Pooled Subsidiaries received cash from Mutual of
$11.4 million and $19.7 million, which related to the
additional net insurance liabilities assumed by the
Pooled Subsidiaries on January 1, 1999 and 1998,
respectively. Effective January 1, 2000, the Pooling
Arrangement was amended to make SAIC a participant
in the Pooling Arrangement and the Pooled
Subsidiaries aggregate participation increased to 53%
(State Auto P&C -~ 39%, Milbank — 10%, Farmers
Casualty - 3% and SAIC - 1%). In conjunction with
this change in pool participation, the Pooled
Subsidiaries received cash from Mutual of $18.6 mil-
lion, which related to the additional net insurance liabil-
ities assumed by the Pooled Subsidiaries on January
1, 2000. As noted above, the Pooling Arrangement

changed again effective October 1, 2001 with the
Pooled Subsidiaries aggregate participation increasing
to 80% ( State Auto P&C - 59%, Milbank - 17%,
Farmers Casualty - 3% and SAIC - 1%). All parties
that participate in the Pooling Arrangement have an A.
M. Best rating of A+ (Superior).

In October of 2000, Mutual entered into an agree-
ment with Meridian Mutual Insurance Company
(“Meridian Mutual”), an Indiana domiciled property and
casualty insurance company, pursuant to which
Meridian Mutua! would be merged with and into
Mutual, with Mutual continuing as the surviving corpo-
ration. The effective date of the merger transaction
was June 1, 2001. With the merging of Meridian Mutual
into Mutual, all insurance business that had been writ-
ten by Meridian Mutual became, legally, Mutual busi-
ness. For the period June 1, 2001 through June 30,
2001, the insurance business formerly known as the
Meridian Mutual ‘business prior to the June 1 merger
transaction was excluded from the Pooling
Arrangement. Effective July 1, 2001, the insurance
business of the former Meridian Mutual became part of
the Pooling Arrangement and the Pooled Subsidiaries
assumed 53% of the Meridian Mutual business on this
same date. Concurrent with this transaction, the
Pooled Subsidiaries received cash of $6.4 million and
fixed maturities totaling $109.7 million from Mutual,
which related to the additional net insurance liabilities
assumed by the Pooled Subsidiaries on July 1, 2001.

The business written by the former Meridian Mutual
provides both standard and nonstandard personal
lines and standard commercial lines to its policyhold-
ers. The principal lines of business include standard
personal and commercial automobile, nonstandard
personal automobile, homeowners, commercial multi-
peril, workers’ compensation, general liability and fire
insurance. The former Meridian Mutual business rep-
resents approximately 20% of the Pooled Companies
{defined below) business.

As the former Meridian Mutual business continues
to be written and processed through the underwriting
and claims system for both the standard and nonstan-
dard business on the Meridian systems platform, man-
agement will monitor this business as a separate seg-
ment from the State Auto standard and nonstandard
processed business. Monitoring of these segments
separately is necessary in order to facilitate the inte-
gration of the business as it migrates through new poli-
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cies and renewals to the State Auto systems platform
where State Auto policies, pricing, underwriting , and
claims philosophies will be fully integrated. Over time,
it is anticipated that the Meridian operating segments
will decrease and eventually disappear as they become
fully integrated on to the State Auto systems platform.
Consequently, with the addition of the former Meridian
Mutual business to the Pooling Arrangement, the
Company renamed the two insurance segments that
existed prior to 2001 to be the “State Auto standard
segment” and the “State Auto nonstandard segment”
and that business consisting of the business known
formerly as the Meridian Mutual business to be the
“Meridian standard segment” and “Meridian nonstan-
dard segment.”

In discussing Results of Operations for 2001 and
2000, State Auto P&C, Milbank, Farmers Casualty,
SAIC, National, Mid-Plains, Mutual and Midwest
Security are referred to collectively as the “State Auto
Insurance Companies”, while for 1999, the State Auto
Insurance Companies and Pooled Subsidiaries
exclude SAIC. The Pooled Subsidiaries, Mutual and
Midwest are collectively referred to below as the
“Pooled Companies.”

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s significant accounting policies are
more fully described in note 1 to the Company’s con-
solidated financial statements. In preparing the consoli-
dated financial statements, management is required to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the report-
ed amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the
balance sheet, revenues and expenses for the period
then ended and the financial entries in the accompany-
ing notes to the financial statements. Such estimates
and assumptions could change in the future, as more
information becomes known which could impact the
amounts reported and disclosed therein.

Losses and loss expenses payable are manage-
ment’s best estimates at a given point in time of what
the Company expects to pay to claimants, based on
facts, circumstances and historical trends then known.
It can be expected that the ultimate liability will exceed
or be less than such estimates. During the loss settle-
ment period, additional facts regarding individual claims
may become known, and consequently it often
becomes necessary to refine and adjust the estimate of
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liability. Reserves for reported losses are established on
either a case-by-case or formula basis depending on
the type and circumstances of the loss. The case-by-
case reserve amounts are determined based on the
Company’s reserving practices, which take into
account the type of risk, the circumstances surrounding
each claim and policy provisions relating to types of
loss. The formula reserves are based on historical paid
loss data for similar claims with provision for trend
changes caused by inflation. Loss and loss expense
reserves for incurred claims that have not yet been
reported are estimated based on many variables includ-
ing historical and statistical information, inflation, legal
developments, storm loss estimates, and economic
conditions. Case and formula basis loss reserves are
reviewed on a regular basis and as new data becomes
available, estimates are updated resulting in adjust-
ments to loss reserves. Although management uses
many resources to calculate reserves, there is no pre-
cise method for determining the ultimate liability.

Acquisition costs, consisting of commissions, pre-
mium taxes, and certain underwriting expenses relat-
ing to the production of property and casualty busi-
ness, are deferred and amortized ratably over the con-
tract period. The method followed computing the
acquisition costs limits the amount of such deferred
costs to their estimated realizable value. In determining
estimated realizable value, the computation gives
effect to the premium to be earned, losses and loss
expenses to be incurred, and certain other costs
expected to be incurred as premium is earned. These
amounts are based on estimates and accordingly, the
actual realizable value may vary from the estimated
realizable value.

Investments are either classified as held to maturity,
and carried at amortized cost, or available for sale, and
carried at fair value. For investments classified as avail-
able for sale, the net unrealized holding gains or losses,
net of applicable deferred taxes, are shown as a sepa-
rate component of stockholders’ equity as accumulated
other comprehensive income and as such are not
included in the determination of net income.
Investment income is recognized when earned, and
capital gains and losses are recognized when invest-
ments are sold. The Company regularly reviews its
investments based on current economic conditions,
credit loss experience and other factors. If there is a
decline in an investment’s fair value that is determined
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to be other than temporary, this decline is treated as a
realized loss and the cost basis of the investment is
reduced to its estimated fair value at the date of deter-
mination. Review for impairment of investments
requires significant management judgment.

See a discussion of other factors that may have an
impact on management’s best estimates at “Impact of
Significant External Factors” included herein.

Results of Operaticns
2001 Compared to 2000

Net income for the Company decreased 56.8% in
2001. Contributing to this decease was an increase in
the Company’s statutory combined ratio to 105.2% from
95.5% in 2000. Negatively impacting the Company’s
insurance operations in 2001 were the loss results of the
former Meridian Mutual business, assumed by the
Pooled Subsidiaries beginning in July 2001, and a
decrease in the Company’s management and operations
service fee income. See discussion below.

Consolidated earned premiums increased 39.5%.
This increase was principally the result of the addition
of the former Meridian Mutual business to the Pooling
Arrangement, effective July 1, 2001, and a change in
the Pooled Subsidiaries’ aggregate pooling participa-
tion percentage from 53% to 80%, effective October 1,
2001 (see discussion above regarding these two trans-
actions). These actions increased consolidated earned
premiums 30.9%. The internal growth of the State Auto
standard segment’s earned premiums increased con-
solidated earned premiums 6.8%. This increase has
been largely driven by growth in commercial lines of
business over the last twelve months; however, during
the last half of the calendar year, personal lines of
business began to experience sales increases.
Management believes the personal lines sales increas-
es are due to changes in the market place and to its
establishing the position of Personal Lines Sales
Specialist. The internal growth of the State Auto non-
standard segment earned premiums increased consol-
idated earned premiums 2.0%. Production levels in
this segment continued to improve during 2001 as a
result of improved processing routines for agents and
the easing of competitive pricing pressures it had felt
from certain market leaders in the first half of 2000.
The internal growth of both the Meridian standard and
nonstandard segment on consolidated earned premi-

um was flat. See discussion below regarding manage-
ment’s action during 2001 on the Group Advantage®
Program as well as management’s response to ade-
quacy of premium rate levels within the standard seg-
ment and the Company’s plan on integration with
regard to the Meridian nonstandard segment.

Net investment income increased $8.5 million
(21.7%) in 2001. Contributing to the increase over the
previous year was an increase in investable assets due
to the transfer of cash and fixed maturity securities
from Mutual totaling $354.6 million to the Pooled
Subsidiaries in conjunction with the Poocled Subsidiaries
assuming 53% of the former Meridian Mutual business
on July 1, 2001 and the change in the Pooled
Subsidiaries pooling participation percentages, effec-
tive October 1, 2001, from 53% to 80%. Total cost of
investable assets at December 31, 2001 and 2000, was
$1,150.3 million and $741.1 million, respectively.

The investment vields, based on fixed and equity
securities at cost, were 5.4% and 5.5% for the annual
periods ending 2001 and 2000, respectively. During
2001, the Company experienced an increase in the
number of calls over prior years on higher yielding
fixed maturities. Monies from these calls were rein-
vested at lower rates. See further discussion regard-
ing investments at the “Liquidity and Capital
Resources”, “Investments” and “Market Risk” sec-
tions, included herein.

Management services income, including investment
management fees, decreased $2.0 million to $15.6 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2001. This
decrease is attributable to the resolution of the dis-
agreement between the Company and ODI regarding
the recognition of the service fee paid by Mutual to
State Auto P&C. The service fee under the 2000 Mutua!
Management Agreement paid by Mutual in 2001 was
$12.5 million down from $14.5 million in 2000. See
“Overview” included herein, for discussion of the reso-
lution regarding the management and operations ser-
vice fee. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” includ-
ed herein, for discussion of the overall impact of the
loss of the management and operations service fee on
the Company’s cash flow and operations.

Losses and loss expenses, as a percentage of
earned premiums (the “loss ratio”), were 76.9% and
68.4% for the years 2001 and 2000, respectively.
During the fourth quarter of 2001, the Pooled
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Subsidiaries produced a loss ratio under the Stop Loss
(described above) that exceeded the 80% threshold,
thereby recovering the full layer of $6.2 million from
Mutual. Adversely impacting the current year results
were the loss results of the former Meridian Mutual busi-
ness assumed by the Pooled Subsidiaries. For discus-
sion purposes, the following table provides comparative
statutory loss and loss adjustment expense ratios
(“Statutory Loss Ratio”), net of the Stop Loss recovery,
for the Company’s insurance operating segments:

2001 2000
State Auto standard segment 66.3 67.6
State Auto nonstandard segment 779 814
Meridian standard segment 139.6 -
Meridian nonstandard segment 168.2 _ -
Total Statutory Loss Ratio 774 685

The Company’s State Auto standard segment
reflected an improvement in its loss ratio in 2001 to
66.3 from 67.6 in 2000. This segment’s largest line of
business, automobile, reflected a 1.6 point improve-
ment in its loss ratio in 2001 from 2000. This segmen-
t's next largest line of business, homeowners, has
experienced some deterioration in its loss ratio over
the last several years. Management has been monitor-
ing this line of business and has taken some corrective
action through rate increases and improved underwrit-
ing techniques such as credit scoring. The Company’s
State Auto nonstandard segment experienced an
improvement in its loss ratio in 2001 to 77.9 from 81.4
in 2000. In 2000, this segment began experiencing
some volatility in loss activity in those states where
National began operations in 1999. Consequently,
management began monitoring the premium rate ade-
quacy in these new states and reacted accordingly
throughout 2000 and 2001 by increasing rates in these
new states. Additionally, this segment has implement-
ed a number of underwriting tools, including “point-of-
sale” underwriting as well as the use of credit scoring.
Management believes these two tools have con-
tributed to this segment’s profit improvement.

The former Meridian Mutual business has historical-
ly produced poorer loss results than the State Auto
book. Through the integration process, several areas
within the Meridian Mutual book are being strength-
ened that should produce improved long term results.
The most notable improvement was management’s
focus on reviewing the Meridian segments’ case
reserves during the second half of 2001 to ensure that
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the claims were reserved in a manner consistent with
State Auto practices. During the review, it became
apparent that case reserves on the Meridian segments
for claims occurring in prior accident periods were not
reserved consistently with historic State Auto adequa-
cy levels. Nearly 14,000 open claims were reviewed,
adding approximately $36 million to known case
reserves on claims occurring in prior periods.
Irrespective of this reserve strengthening, the Meridian
segments’ business continues to produce results that
are not acceptable to management.

Corrective action is taking place in both the stan-
dard and nonstandard segments. Group Advantage®
was a program within Meridian’s standard segment
where Meridian made its personal lines products avail-
able to Sam’s Club members through insurance kiosks
located in Sam’s Ciub retail outlets. While this program
generated significant premium growth, it consistently
failed to meet profitability objectives. As a result, in
late 2000, the former Meridian Mutual stopped writing
new Group Advantage® business and began to termi-
nate existing business as permitted by law. At the end
of 2000, there were approximately 15,000 Group
Advantage® policies in force. At year end 2001, there
are approximately 800 of such policies in force. These
remaining policies are expected to non-renew over the
course of 2002.

During 2001, management also focused on
strengthening the Meridian standard segment’s adher-
ence to underwriting guidelines in a manner consistent
with State Auto practices, as well as analyzing the ade-
quacy of prices relative to risks written. Consequently,
management is in the process of re-underwriting 100%
of the commercial renewals to be certain they fall with-
in the State Auto guidelines. State Auto also has a
practice of reviewing the rate level for each line of busi-
ness in each operating state each year. Concurrent
with these reviews, the Meridian standard segment'’s
rate levels on its commercial book of business are
being adjusted to the State Auto rate level.
implementing the Company’s underwriting and pricing
discipline within the Meridian standard segment is
anticipated to have an adverse effect on top line
growth of the Meridian standard segment. This may be
partially offset by new business being written within
the State Auto standard segment by those agencies
previously representing the former Meridian Mutual but
not State Auto.
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The Meridian nonstandard segment produced sig-
nificant underwriting losses generating a loss ratio for
the six months ended December 31, 2001 of 168.2%.
An integration plan is currently in place to write all new
nonstandard auto business produced by former
Meridian agents through National on the National sys-
tem platform. The National system provides several
enhancements that management anticipates will
improve the nonstandard loss ratio for new risks writ-
ten. Most notably, the National system uses credit
scoring and “point-of-sale” underwriting tools. The
order of integration has been prioritized such that the
states with the most need for profit improvement are
migrating to National first. New business for six of the
12 states that the Meridian nonstandard segment oper-
ates in is currently being written through National, with
the remaining six states to follow throughout 2002,

Acquisition and operating expenses, as a percent-
age of earned premiums (the “expense ratio”), were
30.1% and 30.0% for the years 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Impacting the current year expenses was
approximately $1.3 million (0.2%) related to the
Company’s estimate of its future guaranty fund
assessments related to the Reliance Insurance
Company insolvency that was announced during the
fourth quarter of 2001.

Interest expense relates to the line of credit agree-
ment the Company entered into with Mutual during the
second quarter of 1999 to assist in the funding of its
stock repurchase program. See additional discussion
in the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section includ-
ed herein.

Other expense, as a percentage of earned premi-
ums, were 1.6% and 1.7% for the year 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Other expense for 2000 included
$530,000 in interest relating to the return of premiums
to the policyholders in the state of North Carolina as
discussed under “2000 Compared to 1999” in “Results
of Operations” included herein. Absent this interest
charge in 2000, other expense, as a percentage of
earned premiums, was comparable between the two
time periods.

During 2001, the Company experienced an under-
writing loss on its insurance operations, largely due to
the loss results of the former Meridian Mutual business
assumed by the Pooled Subsidiaries. This underwriting
loss, coupled with net investment income being largely

comprised of tax-exempt income, produced an effective
tax rate in 2001 of (15%) versus 22% in 2000. For addi-
tional clarification, see the reconciliation between actual
federal income taxes and the amount computed at the
statutory rate as detailed in footnote 7 in the notes to
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

2000 Compared to 1999

Net income for the Company increased 11.4% in
2000. Contributing to this increase was an improve-
ment in the Company’s statutory combined ratio to
95.5% in 2000 from 96.9% in 1999. Positively impact-
ing the Company’s operations in 2000 was a change in
the services provided by State Auto P&C that generat-
ed an increase in management services income. See
discussion below.

Consolidated earned premiums increased 1.5% in
2000. This increase was principally the resuilt of the
change in the Pooled Subsidiaries' aggregate pooled
participation percentage from 50% to 53% (referred to
above). This action increased consolidated earned pre-
miums 5.5%. The standard insurance segment's inter-
nal growth, as written by the Pooled Companies,
excluding the impact of the change in the Pooling
Arrangement, decreased consolidated earned premi-
ums by 2.8%. The Company's nonstandard insurance
segment's internal growth also decreased consolidat-
ed earned premiums by approximately 0.9%. Also
negatively impacting the Company's consolidated
earned premiums by approximately 0.3% was a return
of premiums to the policyholders in the state of North
Carolina as a result of a rate reduction dating back to
1994 that was mandated by the North Carolina
Insurance Department. In 1994 and 1996, the North
Carolina Rate Bureau (“NCRB”) filed an auto rate
increase, which was challenged by the North Carolina
Insurance Department. The parties agreed to a settle-
ment of the dispute in late March 2000, which resulted
in a rate reduction for the 1994 rate filing and the 1996
rate filing being approved as originally filed by the
NCRB. Consequently, the Company was required to
return approximately $1.1 million in disputed premi-
ums, plus $530,000 in interest. The interest portion of
the returned premium has been reflected in the miscel-
laneous expense line item.

As noted in prior reports, during 1999, the under-
writing performance of the Companies’ commercial
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lines book of business written by its standard segment
began to evidence deterioration from previous perfor-
mance levels. This prompted management to com-
mence a careful review of its underwriters’ adherence
to the Company’s underwriting guidelines for commer-
cial lines. This action had a negative impact on direct
written premiums in 1999 that continued into the first
half of 2000.

During the latter half of 2000, the Company saw
commercial lines sales activity increase over 1999 lev-
els. The Pooled Companies experienced 6.0% growth
in its commercial lines direct written premiums over
1999. The Company’s personal lines of business with-
in its standard segment continued to feel the effects of
extreme price competition even though, during the first
half of 2000, there was some evidence that an increas-
ing number of companies were reacting to continuing
underwriting losses by increasing rates. The
Company's rate of decline in internal growth in these
lines has diminished in the last half of 2000, but inter-
nal growth remained negative. The Company believes
that its underwriting and pricing discipline was a key
factor in the Company's underwriting results for the
year, particularly as compared to other property casu-
alty insurers. The Company believes that its strategy of
taking modest price increases on a regularly scheduled
basis and continuing its diligence in risk selection has
positioned it to take advantage of this change in the
market that the Company perceives is occurring. The
Company is active in the personal and commercial
lines markets, developing new products to enhance its
product portfolio; appointing new agents in its operat-
ing territories; and refining its pricing levels for the mar-
kets and lines it believes offer the most profit potential.

The Company’s nonstandard insurance segment
(National and Mid-Plains) earned premium was $27.4
million in 2000 and $30.9 million in 1999, an 11.3%
decrease. Intense price competition by certain market
leaders is generally believed to be responsible for the
internal growth performance for the year 2000.
Production levels in this segment did begin to improve
over the last half of 2000 but that improvement was not
sufficient to make internal growth positive for the year.

Net investment income increased $4.7 million
(13.6%) in 2000. Contributing to the increase over the
previcus year was the cash transfers to the Company
in conjunction with the change in the Pooling
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Arrangement and transfer of employees to State Auto
P&C referred to above. Total cost of investable assets
at December 31, 2000 and 1989, respectively was
$741.1 million and $651.9 million.

The investment yield based on fixed and equity
securities at cost, were 5.5% and 5.4% for the annual
periods ending 2000 and 1999, respectively. The
Company continued to shift the composition of its
fixed maturity portfolio from taxables to tax-exempt
fixed maturities. At December 31, 2000 and 1999,
respectively, tax-exempt securities comprised approxi-
mately 82% and 76% of the fixed maturity portfolio.
Additionally, during 2000 the Company continued to
experience a number of calls on its higher yielding
fixed maturities. Monies from these calls were reinvest-
ed at the then lower vielding rates. See further discus-
sion regarding investments at the “Liquidity and
Capital Resources”, “Investments” and “Market Risk”
sections included herein.

Management services income increased $8.9 mil-
lion to $17.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2000. This increase is largely attributable to the change
in the nature of the management services provided by
State Auto P&C as discussed above. The Department
has requested that, beginning in 2001, Mutual file an
analysis on a quarterly basis with the Department that
justifies the apportionment of the service fee paid by
Mutual to State Auto P&C under statutory accounting
guidance outlined in SSAP No. 70. See “Overview”.

Losses and loss expenses, as a percentage of
earned premiums (the "loss ratio”), were 68.4% and
67.5% for the years 2000 and 1999, respectively. The
increase in the current year loss ratio was largely the
result of the Company experiencing a relatively small
number of large unusual commercial claims in its stan-
dard insurance segment. Management noted that
these large commercial losses did not impact any one
line of business or geographic region and does not
believe the nature of these claims indicates deteriora-
tion in core underwriting operations. See discussion
above regarding management’s response to its per-
ception of the current underwriting environment.
Additionally, the Company’s nonstandard segment
experienced an increase in its losses over 1999 levels
particularly in those states where National began oper-
ations in 1999. The nonstandard segment is particular-
ly volatile for new states due to the relatively small level
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of premium earned in the initial years of operation.
Management has been monitoring the premium rate
adeguacy in these new states and has reacted
throughout 2000 accordingly by increasing rates in
these new states.

Acquisition and operating expenses, as a percent-
age of earned premiums (the "expense ratio"), were
30.0% and 28.5% for the years 2000 and 1999,
respectively. The increase in the expense ratio is
impacted by the fixed costs such as salaries, deprecia-
tion and utilities which comprised a larger portion of
earned premiums in 2000 than they did in 1999 as a
result of the Company’s less than anticipated premium
writings in 2000.

Interest expense relates to the line of credit agree-
ment the Company entered into with Mutual during the
second quarter of 1999 to assist in the funding of its
stock repurchase program. See additional discussion
in the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section includ-
ed herein.

Other expense increased $0.3 million to $6.9 million
for the year ending December 31, 2000. Other expense
for 2000 included the interest the Company paid on
the North Carolina premium rate refunds, discussed
above.

The effective federal tax rate was 22% and 25% for
the years ended 2000 and 1999, respectively. During
2000, the Company continued to shift its fixed maturity
portfolio from taxable to tax-exempt securities. As a
result of this continued shift, tax-exempt income com-
prised a larger proportion of income before federal
income taxes in 2000 than in 1999. For additional clari-
fication, see the reconciliation between actual federal
income taxes and the amount computed at the statu-
tory rate as detailed in footnote 7 in the notes to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Reportable Segments

The Company’s segment profits {losses) of the

State Auto standard insurance segment, the State
Auto nonstandard insurance segment, the Meridian
standard insurance segment, the Meridian nonstan-
dard insurance segment and the investment manage-
ment services segment, are monitored by management
on an unconsolidated basis, as reflected in footnote
14, Reporiable Segments, in the Company’s consoli-

dated financial statements and therefore do not reflect
adjustments for transactions with other segments. The
following table reflects segment profit or loss for these
segments for the years ended 2001, 2000, and 1999:

2001 2000 1999
{in thousands)

State Auto standard

insurance $45,664 $35,579 $41,146
State Auto nonstandard

insurance 1,378 (116) 1,647
Meridian standard

insurance (44,397) - -
Meridian nonstandard

insurance (5,933) - -
Investment management

services 5,965 5354 5191

Management and
operations services $15,322 $17,552 $ 6,330
Improvement in the Company’s current year seg-
ment profit within the State Auto standard and non-
standard insurance segments is primarily due to an
improvement in these segments’ current year loss
experience and management’s response to premium
rate inadequacy as discussed at “2001 Compared to
2000” in “Results of Operations.” The fluctuation in
segment profit for the State Auto standard insurance
segment in 2000 compared to 1999 is due to a decline
in its underwriting income resulting from an increase in
the level of commercial losses, as discussed above.
Prior to 1997, the State Auto nonstandard segment
focused on improving its loss experience through
implementation of a more restrictive underwriting pos-
ture and rate increases in several operating states.
While this segment showed improvement as a result of
these actions, 2000 experienced significant losses in
several of its new states of operation. As discussed
above, management continually monitors this segmen-
t's premium rate adequacy given the nature of the risks
that are written through the nonstandard market.
Meridian standard and nonstandard insurance seg-
ments’ operational loss reflects the impact of State
Auto management’s integration plan, which included
the Company’s review of Meridian’s case reserves dur-
ing the second half of 2001 as described more fully
above at “2001 Compared to 2000” in “Results of
Operations”. The increase in segment profit of the
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investment management segment in 2001 is the result
of this segment providing its services to the MIGI
Insurers beginning June 1, 2001. This segment’s profits
increased slightly in 2000 due to increasing market
rates within the fixed maturity market. This segment’s
revenue is based on the average market value of the
portfolio of the companies managed, which is largely
comprised of fixed maturities. With the change in the
interest rate environment throughout 2000, the average
market value of the portfolio of the companies man-
aged increased throughout 2000. Segment profits
related to management and operations services
decreased in 2001 as a result of the resolution of the
disagreement between the Company and ODI regard-
ing the service fee paid by Mutual to the Company in
2001. See discussion at “Overview” as well as “2001
Compared to 2000” in “Results of Operations”.
Segment profits related to management and operations
services increased in 2000 from 1999 due to the
change in the Management and Operations Agreement
as discussed in Note 1) in the consolidated financial
statements. For additional information on the
Company’s reportabie segments, see footnote 14 on
“Reportable Segments” in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity refers to the ability of a company to gener-
ate adequate amounts of cash to meet its needs for
both long and short-term cash obligations as they come
due. The Company’s significant sources of cash are
premiums, investment income and investments as they
mature. The Company continually monitors its invest-
ment and reinsurance programs to ensure they are
appropriately structured to enable the insurance sub-
sidiaries to meet anticipated and unanticipated short
and long-term cash requirements without the need to
sell investments to meet fluctuations in claim payments.

In 2001, net cash provided by operating activities
decreased to $63.5 million from $87.7 million in 2000.
This decrease was due to a cash transfer in 2000 of
$18.6 million to the Pooled Subsidiaries in connection
with the 2000 amended Pooling Arrangement, as well
as a cash transfer of $28.1 million to State Auto P&C
relating to the net plan benefit liabilities assumed in
connection with the Mutual Management Agreement,
whereas in 2001, the settlement of approximately
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$355.0 million between the Company and Mutual due
to the impact on the Pooled Subsidiaries from adding
the Meridian Mutual business to the Pooling
Arrangement and changing the pooling participation
percentages was $8.6 million in cash and the balance in
fixed maturity securities. Absent the impact of these
transactions, net cash provided by operating activities
was $54.9 million in 2001 versus $40.9 million in 2000.
The increase in cash flow from operations in 2001 is
largely attributable to the increase in premium writings
and net investment income over the same time period
in 2000. In 2000, net cash provided by operating activi-
ties increased to $87.7 million from $48.9 million in
1999. Absent the cash provided from the January 1,
2000 and January 1, 1999 Pooled Subsidiaries pooling
participation percentage changes, cash provided from
operating activities was $40.9 million in 2000 and $37.5
million, respectively in 1999. This 2000 increase in
cash flow from operations was largely attributable to an
increase in the management and operation services fee
and net investment income over 1999 levels. Over the
last three years, operating cash flows have been suffi-
cient to meet the operating needs of the Company
while providing opportunities for increased investment
and financing needs. The combination of the elimina-
tion of the relatively consistent cash flow from the man-
agement and operations services fee from Mutual in
2001 along with a significantly larger insurance seg-
ment, is expected to result in more volatility going for-
ward but will also provide opportunity for increased
earnings and cash flows from operations.

Net cash used in investing activities reflects cash
flows used in purchases of fixed maturity and equity
securities, respectively, of $246.3 million and $16.4 mil-
fion in 2001, $187.7 million and $15.8 million in 2000,
and $207.8 million and $25.6 million in 1999. The fluctu-
ation in the purchase of fixed maturity securities
between years has been largely driven by the call activi-
ty in response to the changes in the interest rate envi-
ronment over the last three years. During 1999, market
interest rates on fixed maturities declined from previous
years’ levels and the Company experienced a signifi-
cantly higher number of calls on fixed maturities than in
previous years. During 2000, this call activity slowed
somewhat from previous year's levels. The activity in the
call level increased again during 2001 with another
decline in market interest rates in response to the
Federal Reserve Board's monetary policy and easing
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inflationary pressure. Cash flows provided by maturities,
calls and principal reductions of fixed maturities were
$50.2 million in 2001, $27.0 million in 2000 and $37.3
million in 1999. Overall, net cash used in investing activ-
ities was $55.3 million in 2001, $90.9 million in 2000 and
$56.9 million in 1999. The increase in the 2000 investing
activities was the result of the Company investing the
proceeds received on the cash transfers discussed
under cash flows from operating activities.

Net cash provided by financing activities consists of
proceeds from issuance of common stock and payment
of dividends to shareholders. Mutual, whose ownership
in State Auto Financial is approximately 68%, has
waived its right to receipt of the dividends declared by
State Auto Financial in an effort to enhance the statutory
surplus of the insurance subsidiaries of State Auto
Financial for use in support of underwriting operations.
Prior to the declaration of each dividend by State Auto
Financial, Mutual’s directors review the facts and cir-
cumstances then present in deciding whether to waive
such dividend. Beginning in 2002, dividend waiver deci-
sions will be made by the Independent Committee of the
Mutual board of directors. The Independent Committee
has met and determined that it would review dividend
waiver decisions on an annual basis from this point for-
ward. It decided to waive Mutual’s dividends that might
be declared by the board of directors of the Company
for the year 2002 in order to take better advantage of
the investment opportunity STFC represents for Mutual.

Impacting cash used in financing activities during
2001 and 2000 was State Auto Financial’s Board of
Directors approving a plan to repurchase up to 1.0 mil-
lion shares of its common stock from the public over a
period ending December 31, 2001. Through December
31, 2001, State Auto Financial repurchased 50,522
shares. Impacting 1999 was a previous repurchase pro-
gram of State Auto Financial’s common stock. During
the second quarter of 1999, State Auto Financial's
Board of Directors approved a plan to repurchase up to
4.0 million shares of its outstanding common stock over
a period ending December 31, 2000. Repurchases were
transacted to maintain the same ownership ratios
between Mutual and the public as it existed in May
1999, with 69% repurchased from Mutual and 31%
from the public. Through December 31, 1999, all 4.0 mil-
lion shares were repurchased, with approximately 2.7
million shares repurchased from Mutual and 1.3 million

shares from the public. In conjunction with the stock
repurchase plan, State Auto Financial entered into a line
of credit agreement with Mutual for $45.5 million at an
interest rate of 6.0%. The interest rate adjusts each
January 1 based on a formula set forth in the note. The
interest rate was 5.0% during 2001 and will be 4.75%
for 2002. Commencing in 2001, principal is due upon
demand, with final payment to be received on or prior to
December 31, 2005. On March 1, 2002, the Board of
Directors of State Auto Financial again approved a plan
to repurchase up to 1.0 million shares of its common
stock over a pericd extending to and through December
31, 2003 from the public.

Effective with the June 1, 2001 merger transaction
between Meridian Mutual and Mutual, Mutual acquired
all of the outstanding shares of Meridian Insurance
Group, Inc. (“MIGI"), an Indiana domiciled insurance
holding company. MIGI's wholly owned insurance sub-
sidiaries are Meridian Security Insurance Company
(“Meridian Security”), an Indiana domiciled property and
casualty insurer, Meridian Citizens Security Insurance
Company (“Meridian Citizens Security”), an Indiana
domiciled property and casualty insurer, and Insurance
Company of Ohio (“ICO), an Ohio domiciled property
and casualty insurer. MIGI is also party to an affiliation
agreement with Meridian Citizens Mutual Insurance
Company (“Meridian Citizens Mutual”), an Indiana domi-
ciled property and casualty insurer. Meridian Security,
Meridian Citizens Security, ICO and Meridian Citizens
Mutual are collectively referred to hereafter as the
“Meridian Insurers.”

Mutual, State Auto P&C, Milbank, Midwest Security,
Farmers Casualty, SAIC, National, Mid-Plains, and
effective June 1, 2001, the Meridian Insurers, are partici-
pants in a catastrophe reinsurance program.
Collectively, these participants in the catastrophe rein-
surance program are referred to as the “State Auto
Insurance Companies.” The amount retained by the
State Auto Insurance Companies is $40.0 million for
each occurrence. For up to $80.0 million in losses,
excess of $40.0 million, traditiona! reinsurance coverage
is provided. At the beginning of 2001, State Auto P&C
was assuming catastrophe reinsurance from Mutual,
Milbank, Midwest Security, Farmers Casuaity, SAIC,
National, Mid-Plains and the Meridian Insurers, begin-
ning June 1, 2001, in the amount of $115 million excess
of $120 million. Effective November 2001, the catastro-
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phe reinsurance program was renegotiated whereby
State Auto P&C now assumes $100 million excess of
$120 million. This layer of $100 million in excess of $120
million has been excluded from the Pooling
Arrangement. There have been no losses assumed
under this agreement.

To provide funding if the State Auto Insurance
Companies were to incur catastrophe losses in excess
of $120.0 million, State Auto Financial entered into a
structured contingent financing transaction with a finan-
cial institution and a syndicate of other lenders (the
“Lenders”) to provide up to $100.0 million for reinsur-
ance purposes. In the event of such a loss, this
arrangement provides that State Auto Financial would
sell redeemable preferred shares to SAF Funding
Corporation, a special purpose company (“SPC”),
which would borrow the money necessary for such pur-
chase from the Lenders. State Auto Financial would
then contribute to State Auto P&C the funds received
from the sale of its preferred shares. State Auto P&C
would use the contributed capital to pay its direct cata-
strophe losses and losses assumed under the catastro-
phe reinsurance agreement. State Auto Financial is
obligated to repay SPC (which would repay the
Lenders) by redeeming the preferred shares over a five-
year period. In the event of a default by State Auto
Financial, the obligation to repay SPC has been
secured by a Put Agreement among State Auto
Financial, Mutual and the Lenders, under which Mutual
would be obligated to either purchase the preferred
shares from the SPC or repay the SPC for the loan(s)
outstanding. In February of 2002, the FASB initiated a
project to consider guidance related to the issue of
special purpose entity consolidation. Specifically, the
FASB discussed issues refated to identifying and
accounting for special purpose entities as part of the
FASB’s Consolidation Project. The results of these
deliberations could negatively impact the Company’s
accounting approach for the structured contingent
financing transaction, if an event triggering this cover
were to occur. Management will continue to monitor
this guidance and its potentiat impact on the Company.

On March 11, 1897, Mutual acquired 100% of the
outstanding shares of Midwest Security, effective as of
January 1, 1987. In connection with this purchase,
Mutual and State Aute Financial entered into an Option
Agreement granting State Auto Financial the right to
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purchase Midwest Security from Mutual within five years
at a price determined by a formula set out in the Option
Agreement. State Auto Financial did not exercise this
right to acquire Midwest Security.

State Auto P&C’s December 31, 1990 liability for
losses and loss expenses of $65.5 million has been
guaranteed by Mutual. Pursuant to the guaranty agree-
ment, all ultimate adverse development of the
December 31, 1990 liability, if any, is to be reimbursed
by Mutual to State Auto P&C in conformance with
pooling percentages in place at that time. As of
December 31, 2001, there has been no adverse devel-
opment of the liability.

On March 1, 2002, the Board of Directors of State
Auto Financial declared a quarterly cash dividend of
$0.0325 per common share, payable on March 29,
2002, to shareholders of record on March 14, 2002. This
is the 43rd consecutive cash dividend declared by State
Auto Financial’s Board since State Auto Financial had its
initial public offering of common stock on June 28,
1991. State Auto Financial has increased cash dividends
to shareholders for eight consecutive years.

The maximum amount of dividends that may be paid
to State Auto Financial during 2002 by its insurance
subsidiaries without prior approval under current law is
limited to $25.1 million. The Company is required to
notify the insurance subsidiaries’ respective State
Insurance Commissioner within five business days after
declaration of all dividends and at least ten days prior to
payment, Additionally, the domiciliary Commissioner of
each insurer subsidiary has the authority to limit a divi-
dend when the Commissioner determines, based on
factors set forth in the law, that an insurer’s surplus is
not reasonable in relation to the insurer's outstanding
liabilities and adequate to its financial needs. Such
restrictions are not expected to limit the capacity of
State Auto Financial to meet its cash obligations.

The National Association of Insurance
Commissioners {(“NAIC”") maintains risk-based capital
requirements for property and casualty insurers. Risk-
based capital is a formula that attempts to evaluate
the adequacy of statutory capital and surplus in rela-
tion to investment and insurance risks such as asset
quality, loss reserve adequacy and other business fac-
tors. Applying the risk-based capital requirements as
of December 31, 2001, each of the State Auto
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Insurance Companies exceeded all standards estab-
lished by the formula.

As discussed above, there was particular emphasis
throughout 2001 on improving the former Meridian
Mutual book of business. That is expected o continue
in 2002. The Company believes its underwriting and
pricing discipline, as well as its commitment to deliver-
ing its products as effectively and efficiently as possible,
have been key factors in the Company’s underwriting
results over the last several years. The Company
remains active in the personal and commercial markets,
developing new products to enhance its product portfo-
lio; appointing new agents in its operating territories;
and refining its pricing levels for the markets and lines of
business it believes offer the most profit potential.

Other Disclosures

Investments

Stateco performs investment management ser-
vices (the investment management services segment)
on behalf of the Company and Mutual and its sub-
sidiary. The Investment Committee of each insurer’s
Board of Directors sets investment policies to be fol-
lowed by Stateco.

The primary investment objectives of the Company
are to generate income, preserve capital and maintain
adequate liquidity for the payment of claims. Fixed
maturities that are purchased with the intention and
ability of holding them until maturity are categorized as
held to maturity and carried at amortized cost. Fixed
maturities that may be sold due to changing invest-
ment strategies are categorized as available for sale
and are carried at fair value. At December 31, 2001,
the Company had no fixed maturity investments rated
below investment grade, nor any mortgage loans.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had fixed
maturities with a fair value of $1,051.4 million designat-
ed as available for sale compared to $653.3 million at
December 31, 2000. During 2001, the Company contin-
ued its program to increase its equity portfolio to
enhance growth of statutory surplus over the long term.
At December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, the equi-
ty portfolio totaled $59.8 and $58.3 million, respectively.

The Company’s current investment strategy does

not rely on the use of derivative financial instruments.
Market Risk

Investable assets comprise approximately 85% of
the Company’s total assets. Of the total investable
assets, 92.3% are invested in fixed maturities, 5.1%
in equity securities and the remaining in cash and
cash equivalents.

The Company’s decision to make a specific invest-
ment is influenced primarily by the following factors: (a)
investment risks; (b) general market conditions; (c) rel-
ative valuations of investment vehicles; (d) general
market interest rates; (e} the Company’s liquidity
requirements at any given time; and (f) the Company’s
current federal income tax position and relative spread
between after tax yields on tax-exempt and taxable
fixed income investments.

The fixed maturity portfolio is managed in a lad-
dered-maturity style and considers business mix and
liability payout patterns to ensure adequate cash flow
to meet claims as they are presented. At December 31,
2001, the Company’s fixed maturity portfolio had an
average maturity of 12.9 years. For the insurance sub-
sidiaries, the maximum investment in any single note
or bond is limited to 5.0% of statutory assets, other
than obligations of the U.S. government or government
agencies, for which there is no limit. The fixed maturity
portfolio is very high in quality with all holdings either in
Government obligations, municipal, or corporate oblig-
ations. The average rating of the fixed maturity portfo-
lio is AA. The Company does not intend to change its
investment policy on the quality of its fixed maturity
investments. Investments in equity securities are
selected based on their potential for appreciation as
well as ability to continue paying dividends. Additional
information regarding the composition of investments,
along with maturity schedules regarding investments in
fixed maturities, is included in footnote 2 of the consol-
idated financial statements.

The Company’s primary market risk exposures are to
changes in market prices for equity securities and
changes in interest rates and credit ratings for fixed
maturity securities. The Company has no exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk nor does it rely on
the use of derivative financial instruments. To provide the
Company greater flexibility in order to manage its market
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risk exposures, the Company has segregated a portion
of its fixed maturities as available for sale. Also, the
Company does not maintain a trading portfalio.

2001 was characterized by significant changes in the
Company’s investment portfolio. These changes were
the result of the financial market environment as well as
the Pooled Subsidiaries assumption through the Pooling
Arrangement of the former Meridian Mutual business on
July 1, 2001 and the October 1, 2001 change in the
Pooled Subsidiaries pooling participation percentages.
The impact to the Company from the assumption of the
Meridian Mutual business as well as the October 1, 2001
pooling participation percentage change, resulted in
additional assets of $354 million, comprised primarily of
fixed maturity investments, being transferred to the
Pooled Subsidiaries. These transfers of assets are pri-
marily responsible for the 51.1% increase in the
Company’s investable assets at December 31, 2001
(31,168.7 million in 2001 versus $772.2 million in 2000).

The equity markets declined in 2001, the first time

since the 1973/1974 bear market in which the market
declined two years in a row. For the year, the Company’s
equity portfolio holds unrealized gains of $9.5 million at
December 31, 2001, down $4.6 million from December
31, 2000.

The fixed maturity portfolio was impacted by the
asset transfers discussed above. While the interest rate
environment did not change significantty from 2000, the
market did weaken a bit near the end of the year result-
ing in the Company experiencing a decline of $8.1 million
in its unrealized gains on its available for sale fixed matu-
rity portfolio at December 31, 2001.

The following table provides information about the
Company’s fixed maturity investments used for purposes
other than trading that are sensitive to changes in inter-
est rates. The table presents principal cash flows from
maturities, anticipated calls and estimated prepayments,
or pay downs from holdings in asset backed securities.
The table also presents the average interest rate for each
period presented.

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT MATURING IN:
(dollars in thousands)

2005 Thereafter Total Fair Value

2001 2002 2003
Fixed interest
rate securities $55,498 17,428 24,334
Average
interest rate 52% 6.5% 5.5%

New Accounting Standards

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 141, Business Combinations, and No.
142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. Under
the new rules, goodwill will no longer be amortized but
will be subject to impairment tests in accordance with
the statements. Other intangible assets will continue to
be amortized over their useful lives. The Company will
apply the new rules beginning in the first quarter of
2002. The Company has determined that the adoption
of the statements will not have a material impact on the
Company's financial position and results of operations.

Impact of Significant External Factors
Inflation can have a significant impact on property
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31,913 46,135 866,916

1,042,224  $1,080,077

5.8% 5.8% 5.8%

and casualty insurers because premium rates are
established before the amount of losses and loss
expenses are known. When establishing rates, the
Company attempts to anticipate increases from infla-
tion subject to limitations imposed for competitive
pricing. Inflation has been relatively modest over the
last several years thereby allowing a better opportuni-
ty for premiums to keep pace with inflation on certain
lines of business.

The Company considers inflation when estimating
liabilities for losses and loss expenses, particularly for
claims having a long period between occurrence and
settlement. The liabilities for losses and loss expenses
are management's estimates of the ultimate net cost of
underlying claims and expenses and are not discounted
for the time value of money. In times of high inflation,
the normally higher yields on investment income may
partially offset potentially higher claims and expenses.
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The Company is also affected by court decisions.
Premiums rates are actuarially determined to enable an
insurance company to generate an underwriting profit.
These rates contemplate a certain level of risk. The
courts may modify, in a number of ways, the level of
risk which insurers had expected to assume including
eliminating exclusions, multiplying limits of coverage,
creating rights for policyholders not intended to be
included in the contract and interpreting applicable
statutes expansively to create obligations on insurers
not originally considered when the statute was passed.
Courts have also undone legal reforms passed by leg-
islatures, which reforms were intended to reduce a liti-
gant’s rights of action or amounts recoverable and so
reduce the costs borne by the insurance mechanism.
These court decisions can adversely affect an insurer's
profitability. They also create pressure on rates
charged for coverages adversely affected and this can
cause a legislative response resulting in rate suppres-
sion that can adversely affect an insurer. The Company
may also be adversely affected by regulatory actions
on matters within the jurisdiction of the various insur-
ance departments where the Company does business
or has entities domiciled.

The Company is not aware of any adverse legisla-
tion or regulation that was adopted by any state where
the Company did business during 2001 which would
present material obstacles to the Company’s overall
business. Several states where the Company does
business have passed or are considering more strict
regulation of the use credit scoring in rating and/or risk
selection in personal lines of business. This could have
an adverse impact on the Company as it has adopted
credit scoring as an underwriting tool. Such regulation
would limit the Company’s ability to take advantage of
this tool.

Forward-Looking Statements; Certain Factors
Affecting Future Resuits

Statements contained in this Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, the Company’s Form 10-K or
any other reports or documents prepared by the
Company or made by management may be “forward-
looking” within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking
statements are subject to certain risks and uncertain-
ties that could cause the Company’s actual results to

differ materially from those projected. Forward-looking
statements may be identified, preceded by, followed
by, or otherwise include, without limitation, words
such as “plans,” “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,”
“intends,” “estimates,” or similar expressions. The fol-
lowing factors, among others, in some cases have
affected and in the future could affect the Company’s
actual financial performance.

e |In addition to the acquisition of the Meridian
Insurers and Mutual’s merger with Meridian
Mutual as discussed above, during the past sev-
eral years, Mutual and the Company have
acquired other insurance companies, such as
Milbank, Farmers Casualty, and Midwest
Security, and it is anticipated that Mutual and
the Company will continue to pursue acquisi-
tions of other insurance companies in the future.
Acquisitions involve numerous risks and uncer-
tainties, including the following: obtaining nec-
essary regulatory approvals of the acquisition
may prove to be more difficult than anticipated;
integrating the acquired business may prove to
be more costly or difficult than anticipated; inte-
grating the acquired business without material
disruption to existing operations may prove to be
more difficult than anticipated; anticipated cost
savings may not be fully realized (or not realized
within the anticipated time frame) or additional or
unexpected costs may be incurred; loss results
of the Company acquired may be worse than
expected; and retaining key employees of the
acquired business may prove to be more difficult
than anticipated. In addition, other companies in
the insurance industry have similar acquisition
strategies. There can be no assurance that any
future acquisitions will be successfully integrated
into the Company’s operations, that competition
for acquisitions will not intensify or that the
Company will be able to complete such acquisi-
tions on acceptable terms and conditions. In
addition, the costs of unsuccessful acquisition
efforts may adversely affect the Company’s
financial performance.

e The Company’s financial results are subject to
the occurrence of weather-related and other
types of catastrophic events, none of which are
within the Company’s control.
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STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company)

°o The Company’'s operations are subject to
chandes occurring in the llegislative, regulatory
and judicial environm"ent. Risks and uncertainties
related to the legislative, regulatory, and judicial
environment include, but are not limited to, leg-
islative changes at both the state and federal
level, state and federal regulatory rulemaking pro-
mulgations and adjudications that may affect the
Company specifically, its affiliates or the industry
generally, class action and other litigation involv-
ing the Company, its affiliates, or the insurance
industry generally and judicial decisions affecting
claims, policy coverages and the general costs of
doing business. Many of these changes are
beyond the Company’s control.

© The laws of the various states establish insur-
ance departments with broad regulatory powers
relative to approving intercompany arrange-
ments, such as management, pooling, and
investment management agreements, granting
and revoking licenses to transact business, regu-
lating trade practices, licensing agents, approv-
ing policy forms, setting reserve requirements,
determining the form and content of required
statutory financial statements, prescribing the
types and amount of investments permitted and
requiring minimum levels of statutory capital and
surplus. In addition, although premium rate regu-
lation varies among states and lines of insur-
ance, such regulations generally require approval
of the regulatory authority prior to any changes
in rates. Furthermore, all of the states in which
the State Auto Group transacts business have
enacted laws which restrict these companies’
underwriting discretion. Examples of these laws
include restrictions on agency terminations and
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laws requiring companies to accept any appli-
cant for automobile insurance and laws regulat-
ing underwriting “tools”.These laws may
adversely affect the ability of the insurers in the
State Auto Group to earn a profit on their under-
writing operations.

The property and casualty insurance industry is
highly competitive. While prices have generally
increased in some lines, price competition con-
tinues to be intense. The Company competes
with numerous insurance companies, many of
which are substantially larger and have consider-
ably greater financial resources. In addition,
because the Company’s products are marketed
exclusively through independent insurance
agencies, most of which represent more than
one company, the Company faces competition
within each agency. The Company competes
through underwriting criteria, appropriate pric-
ing, and quality service to the policyholder and
the agent and through a fully developed agency
relations program. See “Marketing” in the
“Narrative Description of Business” in Item 1 of
the Company’s Form 10-K.

The Company is subject to numerous other fac-
tors which effects its operations, including, with-
out limitation, the development of new insurance
products, geographic spread of risk, fluctuations
of securities markets, economic conditions,
technological difficulties and advancements,
availability of labor and materials in storm hit
areas, late reported claims, previously undis-
closed damage, utilities and financial institution
disruptions, and shortages of technical and pro-
fessional employees.




STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual insurance Company)

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
State Auto Financial Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of State Auto Financial Corporation and sub-
sidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders'
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of State Auto Financial Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2001 and 2000, and the consolidated resuits of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States.

Columbus, Ohio
February 26, 2002
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STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company)

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets
Fixed maturities:
Held to maturity, at amortized cost (fair value $28,672 and $40,225,
FESPECHVEIY) .« ot e e e e
Available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost $1,042,539 and $636,302,
respeCtiVely) . L e e e
Equity securities, available for sale, at fair value (cost $50,361 and $44,220, respectively)
Total inVESEIMENTS . .. . e e

Cashand cashequivalents . ...... ... ... . . . . i
Deferred policy acquisition costs . . ... ... oo i i e
Accrued investment income and otherassets . . ......... ... ... . . L
Duefromaffiliate ....... ... ... . 0
Net prepaid pension BXPENSE . . ...ttt e e e
Reinsurance recoverable on losses and loss expenses payable . . ..............
Prepaid reinsurance premiums .. ...t e e
Federal income taxes:

CUITENt L L e e e e

D = -Y'o
Property and equipment, at cost, net of accumulated depreciation of $3,351

and $2,785, respectively . .. ... e
GoodWIll L. e e e e
T0tal @SSETS . . . o e

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Losses and loss expenses payable . ..... ... it e
Unearned premiums . ... o e e e
Note payableto affiliate . ....... ... . . . i e
Postretirement benefit liabilities .. ........... .. ...
Federal income taxes:
L@ =T o
Deferred . ..o e e e e e e
Other liabilities ... ..o e e e e e e
Duetoaffiliates . ... i e e
Total labilities . . . o . e e e e

Commitments and contingencies .............c. it
Stockholders' equity:
Class A Preferred stock (nonvoting), without par value. Authorized 2,500,000
Shares; NONE ISSUBA . . . .ottt et e e e e e e e e
Class B Preferred stock, without par value. Authorized 2,500,000 shares;
NONE ISSUE . .ttt e e e e e e
Common stock, without par value. Authorized 100,000,000 shares; 43,045,320
and 42,625,723 shares issued, respectively, at stated value of $2.50 per share
Less 4,108,230 and 4,071,012 treasury shares, respectively, atcost .. ........
Additional paid-incapital . ....... ...
Accumulated other comprehensive income ........ ... .. . i i i
Retained earnings .. .. .o e e
Total stockholders' eqQUItY ... ... oo e

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity . .. .. ... i i

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Recember 31

2001

2000

(dollars in thousands,
except share data)

$ 27,406 39,307
1,051,405 653,251
59,845 58,312
1,138,656 750,870
30,016 21,305
67,087 32,458
38,908 19,795

— 1,405

43,344 37,738
13,919 7,930
4,955 11,575
1,549 —
13,800 —
13,250 12,760
2,012 2,270
$1,367,496 898,106
$ 523,860 244,583
329,495 160,387
45,500 45,500
57,237 55,841

— 2,903

— 1,490

5,059 1,343
6,152 —
967,303 512,047
107,613 106,564
(47,613) (47,038)
47,106 44,208
12,030 20,317
281,057 262,008
400,193 386,059
$1,367,496 898,106




STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company)

Consolidated Statements of income

Earned premiums ... oo e
Netinvestmentincome . ... .. .
Management services income from affiiates ............ ... ... ... ..
Net realized gainsoninvestments ........... ... ... . .. ..
Other income (includes $1,450, $1,546 and $1,676, respectively,

from affiliates) . .. ... . e
Total reVeNUES . . .. o e e e

LOSSES and 10SS XPENSES .« . ..t ittt e e
Acquisition and operating eXpenses .. ... i
Interest expensetoaffiliate . . ...... ... ..
Other eXpENSES . . . i e e
TOlal @XPENSES . . oo e

Income before federal income taxes . ..........c.. i i
Federal income tax expense (benefit):
CUITENt o e e
Deferred . ... .
Total federal INCOME tAXES . . . oot et e et
Netincome . ... .. e
Earnings per common share:
BasiC . . i
Diluted . . . e

Dividends paid percommonshare ........... .. .. i

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year ended December 31

2001

(dolfars in thousarnids,

2000

1999

except per share amount)

$ 555,207 397,967 392,058
47,375 38,915 34,262
15,586 17,594 8,727
1,962 5,255 2,555
3,142 3,043 3,269
623,272 462 774 440,871
427,074 272,167 264,628
167,207 119,569 111,772
2,275 2,730 955
8,740 6,864 6,531
605,296 401,330 383,886
17,976 61,444 56,985
7,699 14,408 12,136
(10,338) 678) 2,033
(2,639) 13,730 14,169
$ 20,615 47,714 42 816
$ 053 1.24 1.05
$ 052 1.21 1.03
$ 0.13 0.12 0.11
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STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company)

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders® Equity (in thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Common Treasury Treasury Paid-in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Stock Shares Stock Capital Income Earnings  Total
Balance-December 31, 1998 42,040 $105,100 13 $(167) $41,539 $20,276 $174,076 $340,824
Net income 42,816 42,816
Unrealized losses, net of
tax and reclassification
adjustment (20,120) (20,120)
Comprehensive income 22,696
Issuance of common stock 315 788 1,139 1,927
Tax benefit from stock
options exercised 258 258
Treasury shares acquired
on stock option exercises 21 (222) (222)
Treasury shares acquired
under repurchase program 4,000 (46,199) (46,199)
Stock options granted 242 242
Change in minority interest
of subsidiary (616) 92 (524)
Cash dividends paid (1,315) (1,315)
Balance-December 31, 1999 42,355 105,888 4,034 (46,588) 42,562 156 215,669 317,687
Net income 47,714 47,714
Unrealized gains, net of
tax and reclassification
adjustment 20,161 20,161
Comprehensive income 67,875
Issuance of common stock 271 676 1,120 1,796
Tax benefit from stock
options exercised 189 189
Treasury shares acquired
on stock option exercises 12 (149) (149)
Treasury shares acquired
under repurchase program 25 (301) (301}
Stock options granted 524 524
Change in minority interest
of subsidiary (187) 22 (165)
Cash dividends paid (1,397 (1,397)
Balance-December 31, 2000 42,626 106,564 4,071 (47,038) 44,208 20,317 262,008 386,059
Net income 20,615 20,615
Unrealized losses, net of tax
and reclassification
adjustment (8,287) (8,287)
Comprehensive income 12,328
Issuance of common stock 419 1,049 1,604 2,653
Tax benefit from stock
options exercised 1,140 1,140
Treasury shares acquired on
stock option exercises 12 (187) (187)
Treasury shares acquired
under repurchase program 25 (388) (388)
Stock options granted 154 154
Cash dividends paid (1,566) (1,566)
Balance-December 31, 2001 43,045 $107,613 4,108 $(47,613) $47,106 $12,030 $281,057 $400,193

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:

Nt INCOME .o e

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization, net .............................
Net realized gainsoninvestments . .............................

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Deferred policy acquisitioncosts . ......... ... i
Accrued investment income and otherassets ...................
Net prepaid pension eXpense ...t i
Postretirement benefit liabilities ......... ... ... ... ... . oL

Reinsurance recoverable on losses and loss

expenses payabie and prepaid reinsurance premiums .. ..........
Other liabilities and due to/from affiliates, net ....................
Losses and loss expensespayable ............ ... ... .. ...
Unearned premiums . ... .. i e
Federalincometaxes ...t

Cash provided from adding the former Meridian Mutual Insurance

Company business to the reinsurance pool, effective 7/1/01 ........

Cash provided from the change in the reinsurance poo!

participation percentage 10/1/01, 1/1/00 and 1/1/99, respectively ...
Cash provided from transfer of employees, effective 1/1/00 ..........

Net cash provided by operating activities ............... ... ... ......

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of fixed maturities - availableforsale ....................
Purchase of equity securities ........ ... o i i

Maturities, calls and principal reductions of fixed maturities - held

tomaturity . ..o e

Maturities, calls and principal reductions of fixed maturities - available

fOr Sale ... e e e
Sale of fixed maturities - availableforsale ........................
Saleofequity securities . ... ... i e
Net cash acquired on acquisition of Farmers Casualty insurance Company .
Net additions of property and equipment .........................

Net cash used ininvesting activities .. ........ ... ..o ...

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net proceeds from issuance of debtto affilate .. ...................
Net proceeds from issuance of commonstock ....................
Payments to acquire treasuryshares . ........... ... ... . o
Paymentofdividends .......... . i

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ....................
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .................
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningofyear . .....................

Cash and cash equivalentsatendofyear ................ ... ... ...,

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year ended December 31

2001 2000 1889
(in thousands)
$ 20615 47,714 42,816
3,036 3,548 3,257
(1,962) (5,255) (2,555)
(4,735) {1,756) (2,159)
(16,671) (2,480) 1,218
(5,606) (4,168) 2,116)
1,396 3,746 654
(7,943) (763) 4,721)
11,273 (7,106) 2,900
47,693 (440) (7,099)
21,919 6,817 4,031
{(14,139) 1,093 1,290
6,380 — —
2,197 18,617 11,419
— 28,098 —
63,453 87,665 48,935
(246,269) (187,724) (207,768)
(16,437) (15,783) (25,567)
11,612 4,600 11,776
38,552 22,355 25,516
149,043 71,530 113,671
9,301 16,158 17,369
— — 11,568
{1,056) (2,066) (3,459)
(55,254) (90,930) (56,894)
—_ — 45,500
2,466 1,708 1,928
(388) {301) (46,199)
(1,566) (1,397) (1,315)
512 10 {86)
8,711 (3,255) (8,045)
21,305 24,560 32,605
$ 30,016 21,305 24,560
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STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of State
Auto Financial Corporation include State Auto
Financial Corporation (State Auto Financial) and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries that consist of:

o State Auto Property and Casualty Insurance
Company (State Auto P&C), a South Carolina
corporation

o Milbank Insurance Company (Milbank), a South
Dakota corporation

o Farmers Casualty Insurance Company (Farmers
Casualty), an lowa corporation

o State Auto Insurance Company (SAIC), an Chio
corporation

o State Auto National Insurance Company (National),
an Ohio corporation

o Stateco Financial Services, Inc. (Stateco), an
Ohio corporation

o Strategic Insurance Software, Inc. (S.1.8.), an
Ohio corporation.

Mid-Plains Insurance Company (Mid-Plains), an
lowa corporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Farmers Casualty. The financial statements also
include the operations and financial positicn of 518
Property Management and Leasing, LLC (518 PML),
whose members are State Auto P&C and Stateco.

In August 1998, State Auto Financial purchased
$9.0 million of surplus notes from Farmers Casualty
Company Mutual (FCCM), an lowa domiciled stan-
dard property casualty insurer. In 1988, a plan to con-
vert FCCM into a stock insurance company was
approved by the board of FCCM, its policyholders
and the lowa Division of Insurance. The plan of con-
version contemplated that State Auto Financial, in
exchange for the redemption of the surplus notes,
would acquire the newly issued shares of Farmers
Casualty. Effective January 1, 1999, FCCM, renamed
Farmers Casualty Insurance Company, became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of State Auto Financial.

State Auto Financial, an Ohio corporation, is a
majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile
Mutual Insurance Company (Mutual), an Ohio corpo-
ration. State Auto Financial and subsidiaries are
referred to herein as “the Companies” or “the
Company.” All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

(b) Description of Business
The Company, through State Auto P&C, Milbank,
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Farmers Casualty and SAIC, provides standard per-
sonal and commercial insurance to its policyholders.
Their principal lines of business include personal and
commercial automobile, homeowners, commercial
multi-peril, workers’ compensation, general liability
and fire insurance. National and Mid-Plains provide
nonstandard automobile insurance. State Auto P&C,
Milbank, Farmers Casualty, SAIC, National, and Mid-
Plains operate primarily in the central and eastern
United States, excluding New York, New Jersey, and
the New England states, through the independent
insurance agency system. State Auto P&C, Milbank,
Farmers Casualty, SAIC, National and Mid-Plains are
chartered and licensed as property and casualty
insurers in the states of South Carolina, South
Dakota, lowa, Ohio (SAIC and National) and lowa,
respectively, and are licensed in various other states.
As such, they are subject to the regulations of the
applicable Departments of Insurance of their respec-
tive states of domicile (the Departments) and the
regulations of each state in which they operate.
These property and casualty insurance companies
undergo periodic financial examination by the
Departments and insurance regulatory agencies of
the states that choose to participate.

Through State Auto P&C, effective January 1,
2000, the Company provides management and
operation services under new management agree-
ments for all insurance and non-insurance affiliates.
Pursuant to these agreements, the Company
received approximately $28.1 million equal to the
net pension and postretirement plan benefit liabili-
ties assumed relating to the transfer to the
Company of all employees from Mutual and other
affiliated companies. Prior to January 1, 2000, the
Company, through State Auto P&C, provided exec-
utive insurance management services to all insur-
ance affiliates.

SAIC was formed in 1999 to engage in the business
of providing standard personal insurance to its policy-
holders through the use of leading edge technology
within the independent agency system. Effective
January 1, 2000, SAIC was chartered and licensed as
a property and casualty insurer in the state of Ohio and
began operations at that time.

Through Stateco, the Company provides invest-
ment management services to affitiated companies
and also provides insurance premium finance services
to customers of State Auto P&C, Mutual and Milbank.

The Company, through S.1.S., develops and sells
software for the processing of insurance iransactions,




STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
{a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

database management for insurance agents and
electronic interfacing of information between insur-
ance companies and agencies. S.I.S. sells services
and products to affiliated companies and their agents
and markets similar services and products to nonaffil-
jated insurers and their agencies.

518 PML, an Ohio limited liability company, was
formed to engage in the business of owning and leas-
ing real and personal property to affiliated companies.

(c) Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, which vary
in certain respects from statutory accounting prac-
tices followed by State Aute P&C, Milbank, Farmers
Casualty, SAIC, National and Mid-Plains that are
prescribed or permitted by the Departments.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements,
management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance
sheet, revenues and expenses for the period then
ended and the accompanying notes to the financial
statements. Such estimates and assumptions could
change in the future as more information becomes
known which could impact the amounts reported and
disclosed herein.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible
to significant change in the near term relate to the
determination of losses and loss expenses payable.
in connection with the determination of this estimate,
management uses historical data and current busi-
ness conditions to formulate estimates including
assumptions related to the ultimate cost to settle
claims. These estimates by their nature are subject to
uncertainties for various reasons. The Company's
results of operations and financial condition could be
impacted in the future should the ultimate payments
required to settle claims vary from the liability current-
ly provided.

(d) Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs, consisting of commissions, pre-
mium taxes, and certain underwriting expenses relat-
ed to the production of property and casualty busi-
ness, are deferred and amortized ratably over the
contract period. The method followed in computing
deferred policy acquisition costs limits the amount of
such deferred costs to their estimated realizable

value. In determining estimated realizable value, the
computation gives effect to the premium to be
earned, losses and loss expenses to be incurred, and
certain other costs expected to be incurred as premi-
um is earned, without credit for anticipated invest-
ment income. These amounts are based on estimates
and accordingly, the actual realizable value may vary
from the estimated realizable value. Net deferred poli-
cy acquisition costs were:

Year ended December 31

2001 2000 1999

(dollars in thousands)

Balance, beginning of

1= | T $ 32,458 28,936 24,799
Acquisition costs

deferred....covcvvevienns 143,651 101,305 96,578
Amortized to expense

during the year ......... 109,022 97,783 92,441
Balance, end

of year.....cooeoeeneinne $ 67,087 32,458 28,936

{e) Investments

Investments in fixed maturities, where the Com-
panies have the ability and intent to hold to maturity,
are carried at amortized cost. Mortgage-backed
securities are carried at amortized cost using the sci-
entific method of amortization including anticipated
prepayments. Prepayment assumptions are obtained
from a pricing service and are based on the current
interest rate and economic environment. The retro-
spective adjustment method is used to value all such
securities. For fixed maturities classified as held to
maturity, unrealized holding gains or losses are not
reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. Investments in fixed maturity and equity
securities held as available for sale are carried at fair
value. The unrealized holding gains or losses, net of
applicable deferred taxes, are shown as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity as accumulated
other comprehensive income and as such are not
included in the determination of net income. Gains
and losses on the sale of equity securities are com-
puted using the first-in, first-out method. The
Company regularly reviews its investments based on
current economic conditions, credit loss experience
and other factors. If there is a decline in an invest-
ment’s fair value that is determined to be other than
temporary, it is treated as a realized loss and the
cost basis of the investment is reduced to its esti-
mated fair value.
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STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

() Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost of acqui-
sition over the fair value of the net assets acquired
and is being amortized using the straight-line
method over 15 years. Accumulated amortization is
$1,863,657 and $1,605,000 at December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively. See related goodwill discus-
sion at note 1(n).

(g) Losses and Loss Expenses Payable

Losses and loss expenses payable are based on
formula and case-basis estimates for reported
claims, and on estimates, based on experience and
perceived trends, for unreported claims and loss
expenses. The liability for unpaid losses and loss
expenses, net of estimated salvage and subrogation
recoverable of $26,216,000 and $13,403,000 at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, has
been established to cover the estimated ultimate
cost of insured losses. The amounts are necessarily
based on estimates of future rates of inflation and
other factors, and accordingly there can be no
assurance that the ultimate liability will not vary from
such estimates. The estimates are continually re-
viewed and adjusted as necessary; such adjust-
ments are included in current operations (see note
4). Salvage and subrogation recoverables are esti-
mated using historical experience. As such, losses
and loss expenses payable represent manage-
ment’s best estimate of the ultimate liability related
to reported and unreported claims.

(h) Premium Revenues
Premiums are recognized as earned using the
monthly pro rata method over the contract period.

() Management Services Income

Management services income includes income
for management and operations services provided
by State Auto P&C in 2001 and 2000 and executive
insurance management services provided in 1999
and income for investment management services
provided by Stateco. See note 6(d) regarding the
Company’s resolution of its disagreement with the
Ohio Department of Insurance (ODI) regarding its
recognition of management and operations service
fee revenue paid by Mutual in 2001. Management
and operations services income in 2001 and 2000,
to the extent certain operational ratios are
achieved, is recognized quarterly based on a per-
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centage of the three year average of each man-
aged company’s adjusted surplus or equity,
whereas in 1999 executive management income
was based on a five year average of each man-
aged insurer’'s adjusted statutory surplus. Midwest
Security Insurance Company (Midwest Security), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Mutual, is an exception
to this, calculating its fee based on a percentage of
quarterly direct premiums written. Investment man-
agement income is recognized quarterly based on
a percentage of the average fair value of investable
assets and the performance of the equity portfolio
of each company managed.

(i) Software Revenue Recognition

S.I.S. recognizes revenue from license fees when
the product is delivered and service revenue when
services are performed. Costs of developing and test-
ing new or enhanced software products are capital-
ized and are amortized on a product-by-product basis
utilizing the straight-line method over a period not to
exceed three years. Unamortized software develop-
ment costs of $186,000 and $626,000 are included in
accrued investment income and other assets at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Software
amortization, included in other expenses, was
$440,000, $622,000 and $614,000 in 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively.

(k) Federal Income Taxes

The Company files a consolidated federal income
tax return and pursuant to an agreement, each entity
within the consolidated group pays its share of federal
income taxes based on separate return caiculations.

Income taxes are accounted for using the liability
method. Using this method, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on differences
between financial reporting and tax bases of assets
and liabilities and are measured using the enacted
tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the dif-
ferences are expected to reverse.

() Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid debt
instruments with a maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents.

(m) Other Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income is defined as all changes in
an enterprise’s equity during a period other than those




STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company)

Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements, Continued

resulting from investments by owners and distribu-
tions to owners. Comprehensive income includes net
income and other comprehensive income. Other com-
prehensive income includes all other non-owner relat-
ed changes to equity and represents net unrealized
gains and losses on available-for-sale fixed maturities
and equity securities.

Separate presentation of the accumulated balance
of other comprehensive income within the equity
section of the statement of financial position is also
required. The Company has presented the required
displays of total comprehensive income and its
components, within the “Consolidated Statements
of Stockholders’ Equity.” See additional disclosures
at note 13.

(n) New Accounting Standards
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards

Realized gains:

Fixed maturities available for sale ......cccccccvviiiiininn.
EQUItY SECUNMTIES. ..o
Total realized GainNS.......cccccv i

Realized losses:

Net realized gains on investments..........cccccevvvvciiieeiccnenn,

Board issued Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 141, Business Combinations, and No.
142, Goodwilll and Other Intangible Assets, effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001.
Under the new rules, goodwill will no longer be
amortized but will be subject to impairment tests in
accordance with the statements. Other intangible
assets will continue to be amortized over their useful
lives. The Company will apply the new rules begin-
ning in the first quarter of 2002. The Company has
determined that the adoption of the statements will
not have a material impact on the Company’s finan-
cial position and results of operations.

{2) Investments

Realized and unrealized gains and losses are sum-
marized as follows:

Year ended December 31
2001 2000 1989
(in thousands)

........................................ $ 3,072 791 1,336
........................................ 2,258 5,959 3,642
........................................ 5,330 6,750 4,978

........................................ 114 827 488
........................................ 3,254 668 1,896
........................................ — — 39

........................................ 3,368 1,495 2,423

........................................ $ 1,962 5,255 2,555

Increase (decrease) in unrealized holding gains — Equity securities ....ccc.ccccoevicene $(4,608) (2,123) 3,252

Increase (decrease) in unrealized holding gains — Fixed
maturities available for sale at fair value........c..ccccceee..

Change in deferred unrealized gain ......ccccocevvvverice e,
Deferred federal income taxes thereon............c..ooooneen.

Increase (decrease) in net unrealized holding gains or losses

........................................ (8,134) 33,195 (34,081)

) (55) (125)

........................................ 4,462 (10,856) 10,834

................................... $(8,287) 20,161 (20,120)
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The Company’s investments in held to maturity and available for sale securities are summarized as follows:

Cost or Gross Gross
amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
Held to maturity at December 31, 2001: cost holding gains holding losses  value

(in thousands)

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

government corporations and agencies .........cuveerens $ 2,015 73 — 2,088
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ............. 7,011 403 — 7,414
Mortgage-backed securities: U.S. government agencies 18,380 790 — 19,170
TOUA] et e e $ 27,406 1,266 — 28,672

Available for sale at December 39, 2001:

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

government corporations and agencies .........cc..ve.... $ 60,623 2,051 286 62,388
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ............. 831,865 12,799 9,014 835,650
Corporate SeCUrtieS..........ccocoveveriienriieriene e 110,549 3,050 789 112,810
Mortgage-backed securities: U.S. government agencies 30,777 938 20 31,695
Mortgage-backed securities: Corporate. .....cccoovevevueeene 8,725 139 2 8,862

Total fixed Maturities ........cccocvevirvirvrcee e 1,042,539 18,977 10,111 1,051,405
EqQUIty SECUNMTIES ..ovvvirier e e 50,361 13,794 4,310 59,845
TOUA ..ottt vstee et e svs e sen et tr et $1,092,900 32,771 14,421 1,111,250

Cost or Gross Gross
amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
Held to maturity at December 31, 2000: cost holding gains  holding losses  value

(in thousands)

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

government corporations and agencies ..........cccove.... $ 2,276 38 — 2,314
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ............. 7,026 354 — 7,380
Mortgage-backed securities........c.coccevvivirve e 30,005 555 29 30,531
TOUAL .ottt e $ 39,307 947 29 40,225

Available for sale at December 31, 2000:

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

government corporations and agencies .......c.ccce...... $ 66,434 1,250 648 67,036
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ............. 513,311 15,634 874 528,071
Corporate SECUNMIES ...iivviiiririiice e 33,259 897 266 33,890
Mortgage-backed securities: U.S. government agencies 23,298 978 22 24,254

Total fixed Maturities .......cccoveeriieniiiciee e 636,302 18,759 1,810 653,251
Equity SECUNtIES ..oveciviieccr e 44,220 17,768 3,676 58,312
[ o] USSR RURORPON $ 680,522 36,527 5,486 711,583

Deferred federal income taxes on the net unrealized holding gain for available for sale investments was $6,478,000
and $10,940,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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The amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturities segregated by held to maturity and available for sale, at
December 31, 2001, by contractual maturity, are summarized as follows:

Held to maturity Available for sale
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
cost value cost value

(in thousands)

Due after 1 year orless.......cccccvvvvecccciininnveennen. $ 1,503 1,542 4,730 4,774
Due after 1 year through 5 years........cccocevveveenn, 512 546 59,972 62,180
Due after 5 years through 10 years........cccceevveee 7,011 7,414 187,667 191,815
Due after 10 years.....cooovvvccveiieveceee e — — 750,668 752,079
9,026 9,502 1,003,037 1,010,848

Mortgage-backed securities.......c.ccccevvreericvnnnnn.n 18,380 19,170 39,502 40,557
$27,406 28,672 1,042,539 1,051,405

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because the issuers may have the right to call or prepay
the obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Fixed maturities with carrying values of approximately $27,666,000 and $21,633,000 were on deposit with regulators
as required by law or specific escrow agreement at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Components of net investment income are summarized as follows:
Year ended December 31
2001 2000 1999
(in thousands)

Fixed MEaTURLIES ..oiviieic e et e e st s be e et e sare e $41,262 36,568 32,096
EQUILY SBCUNLIES ..oiiii ettt r e 996 848 678
Cash and cash equUIVaIENES ........ccoccvivieeece vt 5,756 1,926 1,707
INVESTMENT INCOME oottt et e et se st s e e vta e e s saren e ans 48,014 39,342 34,481
INVESTMENT BXPENSES ...viiii ittt e e et be e snasree e e s eabenes 639 427 219
Nt INVESEMENT INCOMB...c...eeeeeeceecee ettt st ie et s e sereres s erans $47,375 38,915 34,262

The Company’s current investment strategy does not rely on the use of derivative financial instruments.

See note 3 for additional fair value disclosures.

(3) Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial ties not actively traded, fair values are estimated
instruments using values obtained from independent pricing

The following methods and assumptions were used services. The fair values for equity securities are
by the Company in estimating its fair value disclo- based on quoted market prices.

sures for financial instruments:
Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying
Investment securities: Fair values for invest- amounts reported in the balance sheets for these
ments in fixed maturities are based on quoted instruments approximate their fair value.
market prices, where available. For fixed maturi-
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{4) Losses and Loss Expenses Payable
Activity in the liability for losses and loss expenses is summarized as follows:

Year ended December 31
2001 2000 1889
(in thousands)

Losses and loss expenses payable, net of reinsurance recoverables, :
at beginning of Year ... $236,653 221,682 205,034

Incurred related to:
Currentyear .......coovcevnveienenne. S TP PO PO RRUPP 366,348 277,805 271,507
PIIOE YBAIS wovveiiic vttt st e aea e n e e bttt nane e 60,726 {5,638) (6,878)
TOAI INCUIMTEA. ...ttt st eete et e et eabe e see e s te e erbe e s e e sae e eaban e see s beannes 427,074 272,167 264,629
Paid related to:
CUITENE YEAL ..viveeiieieeiee e cee st e e ee et bea s r e e s ae e sresansseesrrenreeaanons 240,508 164,620 168,512
PrIOE YEAIS «viveicee ettt e et ee e eb ettt et e e sbe e 144,862 104,871 100,349
TOMAI PAIA ...ttt e st r e e e e e s e s n e e e e e eais 385,370 269,491 268,861

Impact of adding the former Meridian Mutual Insurance Company to the
Pooling Arrangement, effective July 1, 2001 (not€ 6) ......cocvvvvrivvivcennnnne 75,575 — —

Impact of pooling change, October 1, 2001, January 1, 2000 and 1999,
respectively (NOLE B) ...uviiiev v et er s e e 156,009 12,295 7,633

impact of acquisition of Farmers Casualty and Mid-Plains,

January 1, 1999 (NOte 1(A))...vvevrecrririrrerecen e e ree et s — — 13,247
Losses and loss expenses payable, net of reinsurance recoverables,
At N OF VAT ...viceeisieeieie ettt sttt et e e ene e $509,941 236,653 221,682

Losses and loss expenses incurred increased by
$60,726,000 in 2001, and decreased by $5,638,000
in 2000 and $6,878,000 in 1999, respectively, for
claims that had occurred in prior years. The increase
of $60,726,000 in 2001, for claims occurring in prior
years, is the result of reserve strengthening that
occurred on the former Meridian Mutual Insurance
Company (Meridian Mututal) business in order to
bring these claim reserves in line with historic State
Auto adequacy levels as well as the result of ongoing
analysis of recent loss development trends. See note
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6(a) regarding discussion of the Meridian Mutual
business assumed by the Pooled Subsidiaries. The
change in the incurred losses related {o prior years
over the two year period ending December 31, 2000
has resulted primarily from development in the long-
tail lines such as general liability, commercial auto lia-
bility, workers’ compensation and no-fault insurance.
Because of the nature of the business written over
the years, the Company’s management believes that
the Company has limited exposure to environmental
claim liabilities.




STATE AUTO FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
{a majority-owned subsidiary of State Automobile Mutual Insurance Company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

(5) Reinsurance

In the ordinary course of business, the Company
assumes and cedes reinsurance with other insurers
and reinsurers and are members in various pools
and associations. See Note 6(a) for discussion of
reinsurance with affiliates. The voluntary arrange-
ments provide greater diversification of business
and limit the maximum net loss potential arising
from large risks and catastrophes. Most of the
ceded reinsurance is effected under reinsurance
contracts known as treaties; some is by-negotiation
on individual risks. Although the ceding of reinsur-
ance does not discharge the original insurer from its
primary liability to its policyholder, the insurance
company that assumes the coverage assumes the
related liability.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimat-
ed in a manner consistent with the claim liability

Losses and loss expenses payable:

associated with the reinsured business. The recover-
ability of these assets depends on the reinsurers’
ability to perform under the reinsurance agreements.
The Company evaluates and monitors the financial
condition and concentrations of credit risk associated
with its reinsurers under voluntary reinsurance ar-
rangements to minimize its exposure to significant
losses from reinsurer insolvencies. The Company has
reported ceded losses and loss expenses payable
and prepaid reinsurance premiums with other insur-
ers and reinsurers as assets. All reinsurance con-
tracts provide indemnification against loss or liability
relating to insurance risk and have been accounted
for as reinsurance. Prior to the reinsurance transac-
tion with Mutual under the Pooling Arrangement, as
discussed in note 6(a), the effect of the Company’s
reinsurance on its balance sheets and income state-
ments, is as follows:
2001 2000

(in thousands)

D I]=To: OO R OO U U RSOOSR OU U SOUP PR $240,012 229,422
1101 = I U 3,837 5,035
07T LYo J OO OO (7,742) (7,930)

Net losses and 10ss expenses Payable ... $236,107 226,527

Unearned premiums:

D T4=To1 T O O SO TS UOR SRR PO $189,800 159,173
F X110 0 Yo [ T RN 1,107 1,214
107=Te [ E U U OO OO SUPUR (4,955) (3,131)

Net UNearned PreMIUMS .......cvveiveiiereeeeeeie sttt eveee e e besesbe s beensessse e aareeseseesessans $185,952 157,256

Year ended December 31
2001 2000 1899
(in thousands)

Written premiums:

D] (=T o S OO ST U $ 501,250 439,623 436,150
F =T 1 0= T [ O O SO ST 4,196 4,678 8,281
L0 Y (= o T U SRRSO _(15,447) {(10,905) (11,216)
Net written PremiumS ... eae e srere e e saene e $ 489,999 433,396 433,215
Earned premiums: :
3] £ ot QU O SO PU PSSP $472,766 432,318 429,577
ASSUMEBA . ecviieieeetcieae st ce et sea vt et e atas s eaet e ttessseaessntsaeatessnneaeeasbaesans 4,304 5,166 10,822
L7 To [T o TSSO PR SRTR (13,623) (10,864) {13,698)
Net 8arned PremiUMS ......ooveeeie et aesaennas $463,447 426,620 426,701
Losses and loss expenses incurred:
1= S $ 328,363 297,757 289,162
ASSUMEBA ..cecvieeiirievrieeeiviireerceties s rteeesreessataseearee seasenstessntessosransansesnsvenensn 3,054 3,726 10,803
1070 [T T OO SOOI (5,549) {2,165) (9,736)
Net losses and 10ss expenses iNCUrred .......ccccvccveeevcereeeccrinees e, $ 325,868 299,318 290,229
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(6) Transactions with Affiliates

(a) Reinsurance

State Auto P&C, Milbank, Farmers Casualty, SAIC
{the Pooled Subsidiaries) and Midwest Security par-
ticipate in a quota share reinsurance pooling arrange-
ment (the Pooling Arrangement) with Mutual whereby
the Pooled Subsidiaries and Midwest Security cede
to Mutual all of their insurance business and assume
from Mutual an amount equal to their respective par-
ticipation percentages in the Pooling Arrangement.
All premiums, losses and loss expenses and under-
writing expenses are allocated among the partici-
pants on the basis of each company’s participation
percentage in the Pooling Arrangement. The Pooling
Arrangement provides indemnification against loss or
liability relating to insurance risk and has been
accounted for as reinsurance.

Since 1998, State Auto P&C, Milbank and
Midwest Security have participated in the Pooling
Arrangement with Mutual. On January 1, 1999,
Farmers Casualty was acquired by State Auto
Financial and became a participant in the Pooling
Arrangement on that same date, at which time the
Pooled Subsidiaries’ aggregate participation
increased from 47% to 50%. In conjunction with this
change in pool participation, the Pooled Subsidiaries
received cash from Mutual of $11.4 million, which
related to the additional net insurance liabilities
assumed by the Pooled Subsidiaries on January 1,
1899. Effective January 1, 2000, the Pooling
Arrangement was amended to make SAIC a partici-
pant in the Pooling Arrangement and the Pooled
Subsidiaries aggregate participation increased to
53%. In conjunction with this change in pool partici-
pation, the Pooled Subsidiaries received cash from
Mutual of $18.6 million, which related to the addition-
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al net insurance liabilities assumed by the Pooled
Subsidiaries on January 1, 2000. In 2000, Mutual
entered into an agreement with Meridian Mutual
Insurance Company (Meridian Mutual), an Indiana
domiciled property and casualty insurance company,
pursuant to which Meridian Mutual would be merged
with and into Mutual, with Mutual continuing as the
surviving corporation. The effective date of the merg-
er transaction was June 1, 2001. With the merging of
Meridian Mutual into Mutual, all insurance business
that had been written by Meridian Mutual became,
legally, Mutual business. For the period June 1, 2001
through June 30, 2001, the insurance business for-
merly known as the Meridian Mutual business prior to
the June 1 merger transaction was excluded from the
Pooling Arrangement. Effective July 1, 2001, the
insurance business of the former Meridian Mutual
became part of the Pooling Arrangement, and the
Pooled Subsidiaries assumed 53% of the former
Meridian Mutual business on this same date.
Concurrently, with this transaction, the Pooled
Subsidiaries received cash of $6.4 million and fixed
maturities totaling $109.7 million from Mutual which
related to the additional net insurance liabilities
assumed by the Pooled Subsidiaries on July 1, 2001.
As part of the resolution of the disagreement with the
ODil regarding the recognition of the service fee rev-
enue paid by Mutual to State Auto P&C (see note
6(d)), the Pooled Subsidiaries aggregate participation
in the Pooling Arrangement was increased to 80%,
effective October 1, 2001. In conjunction with this
change in pool participation, the Pooled Subsidiaries
received cash of $2.2 million and fixed maturities
totaling $236.3 million from Mutual, which related to
the additional net insurance liabilities assumed on
October 1, 2001. All parties that participate in the
Pooling Arrangement have an A. M. Best rating of A+
(Superior).
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The Pooling Arrangement does not relieve each individuai pooled subsidiary of its primary liability as the origi-
nating insurer, consequently, there is a concentration of credit risk arising from business ceded to Mutual. As the
Pooling Arrangement provides for the right of offset, the Company has reported losses and loss expenses payable
and prepaid reinsurance premiums to Mutual as assets only in situations when net amounts ceded to Mutual exceed
that assumed. The following provides a summary of the reinsurance transactions on the Company’s balance sheets

and income statements for the Pooling Arrangement between the Pooled Subsidiaries and Mutual:

Losses and loss expenses payable:

(O -Y [T N OO O U R OU PR RPRRTI
ASSUMEA ...t
Net 8SSUMEd...cciiii et

Unearned premiums:

10 To = To L OSSP PPTURURPPPT
ASSUMEA ...ttt
Net assumed (Ceded) ...ccovvvrrieriiiiircie e

Written premiums:

LO7=To (Yo IUE TSR TR REURRT
ASSUMEA ...eieeie ittt r s aear e s st eenaean s s

Earned premiums:

L07=Yo 1=Te NPT
ASSUME ....eiiiiiiiiie ettt r e s seesre s e e s s e a e s sbees s enreneaas

Losses and loss expenses incurred:

CABA ... s
ASSUMEA.....ccrieieiieee e e —————

Effective with the June 1, 2001 merger transaction
of Meridian Mutual into Mutual, Mutual also
acquired all of the outstanding shares of Meridian
Insurance Group, inc. (MIGI), an Indiana domiciled
insurance holding company. MIGI’'s wholly-owned
insurance subsidiaries are Meridian Security
Insurance Company, an Indiana domiciled property
and casualty insurer, Meridian Citizens Security
Insurance Company, an Indiana domiciled property
and casualty insurer, and Insurance Company of
Ohio, an Ohio domiciled property and casualty
insurer. MIGI is also party to an affiliation agreement
with Meridian Citizens Mutual Insurance Company,
an indiana domiciled property and casualty insurer.
Collectively, the MIGI insurer subsidiaries and affili-
ates are hereafter collectively referred to as the
“Meridian Insurers”,

December 31
2001 20C0
(i thousands)
................................................ $(219,851) (212,614)
................................................ 499,862 222,740
................................................ $280,011 10,126
................................................ $(172,265) (149,854)
................................................ 310,853 141,410
................................................ $138,588 (8,444)

Year ended December 31
2001 2000 1899
(in thousands)

......................... $(448,331) (405,397) (403,679)
......................... 529,253 370,576 356,609

......................... $(426,880) (399,057) (395,698)

......................... 515,619 367,275 358,700
......................... $(298,755) (277,340)  (268,536)
......................... 406,138 250,189 242,935

Mutual, State Auto P&C, Milbank, Midwest
Security, Farmers Casualty, SAIC, National, Mid
Plains, and, effective June 1, 2001, the Meridian
Insurers, are participants in a catastrophe reinsurance
program. Collectively, these participants in the cata-
strophe reinsurance program are referred to as the
“State Auto Insurance Companies.” State Auto P&C
assumed catastrophe reinsurance from Mutual,
Milbank, Midwest Security, Farmers Casualty, SAIC,
National, Mid-Plains and the Meridian Insurers in the
amount of $115 million excess of $120 million.
Effective November 2001, the catastrophe reinsur-
ance program was renegotiated whereby State Auto
P&C assumed $100 million excess of $120 million.
Under this agreement, the Company has assumed
from Mutual and its affiliate premiums written and
earned of $3,021,000, $3,129,000 and $2,355,000 for
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2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. There have been
no losses assumed under this agreement. The cata-
strophe reinsurance program with State Auto P&C
has been excluded from the Pooling Arrangement.

To protect against a catastrophe loss event, in
which the State Auto Insurance Companies would
incur catastrophe losses in excess of $120 million,
State Auto Financial entered into a structured contin-
gent financing transaction with a financial institution
and a syndicate of other lenders (the Lender) to pro-
vide (effective November 2001) up to $100 million for
reinsurance purposes. In the event of such a loss,
this arrangement provides that State Auto Financial
would sell redeemable preferred shares to SAF
Funding Corporation, a special purpose company
(SPC), which would borrow the money necessary for
such purchase from the Lenders. This arrangement
with the Lenders, SPC and State Auto Financial is a
financing arrangement, whereby State Auto Financial
would receive cash funding in the event of a catastro-
phe event as described above. State Auto Financial
would then contribute to State Auto P&C the funds
received from the sale of its preferred shares. State
Auto P&C would use the contributed capital proceeds
to pay its direct catastrophe losses and losses
assumed under the catastrophe reinsurance agree-
ment. State Auto Financial is obligated to repay SPC
by redeeming the preferred shares over a five-year
period. In the event of a default by State Auto
Financial, the obligation to repay SPC has been
secured by a Put Agreement among State Auto
Financial, Mutual and the Lenders, under which
Mutual would be obligated to either purchase the
preferred shares from the SPC or repay the SPC for
the loan(s) outstanding.

For the period October 1, 2001 through December
31, 2003, Mutual entered into a stop loss reinsurance
arrangement (Stop Loss) with the Pooled
Subsidiaries. Under the Stop Loss, Mutual has
agreed to participate in the Pooling Arrangement’s
quarterly underwriting losses and gains in the manner
described. If the Pooling Arrangement’s statutory
loss and loss adjustment expense ratio (loss ratio) is
between 70.75% and 80% (after the application of all
available reinsurance), Mutual will reinsure the Pooled
Subsidiaries 27% of the Pooling Arrangement’s loss-
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es in excess of a loss ratio of 70.75% up to 80.00%.
The Pooled Subsidiaries would be responsible for
their share of the Pooling Arrangement’s losses over
the 80% threshold. Also, Mutual will have the right to
participate in the profits of the Pooling Arrangement.
Mutual will assume 27% of the Pooling
Arrangement’s underwriting profits attributable to
loss ratios less than 69.25%, but more than 58.99%.
During 2001, the Pooled Subsidiaries ceded to
Mutual, $6,177,000 under the Stop Loss, which has
been reflected in reinsurance recoverable on losses
and loss expenses payable at December 31, 2001,
while no premium was assumed by Mutual under the
Stop Loss.

(b) Intercompany Balances

Pursuant to the Pooling Arrangement, Mutual is
responsible for the collection of premiums and pay-
ment of losses, loss expenses and underwriting
expenses of the Pooled Subsidiaries. Unpaid bal-
ances are reflected in due to or due from affiliates in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Settlements of the intercompany account are made
quarterly. No interest is paid on this account. All pre-
mium balance receivables and reinsurance recover-
able on paid losses from unaffiliated reinsurers are
carried by Mutual. The Company had off-balance-
sheet credit risk of approximately $123 million and
$60 million related to premium balances due to
Mutual from agents and insureds at December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

(c) Note Payalble

In 1989, State Auto Financial entered into a line of
credit agreement with Mutual for $45.5 million in
conjunction with its stock repurchase program, at
an interest rate of 6.0%. See related footnote at
note 9(a). Principal payment is due on demand after
December 31, 2000, with final payment to be
received on or prior to December 31, 2005. The
interest rate is adjustable annually after the year
2000 to reflect adjustments in the then current
prime lending rate as well as State Auto Financial’'s
current financial position. Interest rate for the year
2002 is 4.75% and in 2001 was 5.0%. Interest
expense on the loan from Mutual was $2,275,000,
$2,730,000 and $955,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1989,
respectively.
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{d) Management Services

Effective January 1, 2000, State Auto P&C began
providing management and operation services to
Mutual and its insurance affiliate. Revenue relating to
these services amount to $12,621,000 and
$14,654,000 in 2001 and 2000, respectively. Prior to
2000, State Auto P&C provided Mutual and its insur-
ance affiliate executive management services to over-
see the insurance operations of these companies.
Revenue relating to these services amounted to
$4,908,000 in 1999. Stateco provides Mutual and its
affiliate investment management services. Revenue
related to these services amount to $2,965,000,
$2,940,000 and $3,099,000 in 2001, 2000, and 1999,
respectively.

During early 2001, the ODI requested that Mutual
file an analysis with the ODI on a quarterly basis,
starting with the quarter beginning January 1, 2001,
that justified the apportionment of the management
and operation services fee paid by Mutual to State
Auto P&C under the accounting guidance outlined in
Statement of Statutory Accounting Principles No. 70
— Allocation of Expenses. The Company believed its
accounting for such service fee was consistent with
all statutory accounting principies. On October 24,
2001, the board of directors of the Company and
Mutual and special committees thereof approved a
resolution of the disagreement between the
Company and the ODI regarding the service fee paid
by Mutual to State Auto P&C. The disagreement with
OD! was resolved and ODI expressly did not take
issue with Mutual’s payment of the service fee to
State Auto P&C for the nine-month period ending
September 30, 2001 which amounted to $12.5 mil-
lion, pre-tax, nor with Mutual’s accounting for the ser-
vice fee for this same time period. The ODI also
approved regulatory filings, effective October 1, 2001,
implementing a revised management agreement,
changing the Pooled Subsidiaries pooling participa-
tion percentages and implementing a stop loss rein-

surance arrangement. See note 6(a) regarding the
change in the Pooled Subsidiaries pooling participa-
tion percentages and the implementation of a stop
loss reinsurance arrangement.

Effective October 1, 2001, the management agree-
ment between State Auto P&C and certain affiliate
companies, including Mutual, was amended to elimi-
nate the management and operations service fee
charged by State Auto P&C. The management agree-
ment continues to allocate costs and apportion those
costs among the parties to the agreement in accor-
dance with terms outlined therein. As a result of the
loss of the management and operations services
income under this management agreement, substan-
tially all of State Auto P&C’s services income has
been eliminated, effective October 1, 2001. See note
14. The management agreement between State Auto
P&C and Midwest Security was not affected by the
disagreement or resolution with the ODI.

(e) Other Transactions

S.1.S. provides insurance software products and
services to Mutual and its affiliate. Revenue relating
to these services amount to $692,000, $900,000
and $1,109,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respective-
ly, and is included in other income. 518 PML leases
assets to Mutual and its affiliate. Revenue relating to
these services amount to $758,000, $646,000 and
$567,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively and
is included in other income.

State Auto P&C’s December 31, 1990 liability for
losses and loss expenses of $65,464,000 has been
guaranteed by Mutual. Pursuant to the guaranty
agreement, ali ultimate adverse development of the
December 31, 1990 liability, if any, is to be reim-
bursed by Mutual to State Auto P&C in conformance
with pooling percentages in place at that time. As of
December 31, 2001, there has been no adverse
development of the liability.
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(7) Federal Income Taxes
A reconciliation between actual federal income taxes (benefit) and the amount computed at the indicated statutory

rate is as follows:

Amount at statutory rate ..o

Tax-free interest and dividends received deduction............
101 a1 S a1 O RURUSRRO
Effective tax rate .....oooovveii et

Year ended December 31
2001 2000 1999

Amount % Amount: % Amount %
(in thousands)

$ 6,291 35 21,505 35 19,847 35

(8,925)  (50) (7,918 (13 6,315) (11)
143 — 837 1

$ (2,639) (15) 13730 22 14,469 25

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities are presented below:

Deferred tax assets:

Unearned premiums not deductible.......cccvveiiiiiininnn,
Losses and loss expenses payable discounting ...........
Postretirement benefit liabilities ..........cccoeveniiicnneennn.

Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferral of policy acquisition COSts .......ccccccereiiiceniennne.
Net pension BXPENSE......cccivicevieeein e
Unrealized holding gain on investments ..........cccevvninee
1O (o1 PP OUU PRI
Total deferred tax liabilities......cocccvvv v
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities).........c..c.ccoccvrennene.

The Company is required to establish a valuation
allowance for any portion of the deferred tax asset
that management believes will not be realized. In the
opinion of management, it is more likely than not that
the Company will realize the benefit of the deferred
tax assets and, therefore, no such valuation allow-
ance has been established.

Federal income taxes paid during 2001, 2000 and
199¢ were $11,500,000, $12,638,000 and
$12,621,000, respectively.

(8) (a) Pension Benefit Plans

Prior to 2000, State Auto P&C, Stateco and S.I.S.,
pursuant to an intercompany agreement, were partici-
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December 31
2001 2000
{in thousands)
................................................... $22,847 10,385
................................................... 19,767 9,219
.................................................. 13,746 13,035
................................................... 1,982 2,110
.................................................. 1,410 —
.................................................. 59,752 34,749
.................................................. 23,481 11,360
.................................................. 13,993 12,628
.................................................. 6,478 10,940
.................................................. 2,000 1,311
.................................................. 45,952 36,239
.................................................. $ 13,800 (1,480)

pants, together with Mutual, in a defined benefit pen-
sion plan and a defined contribution plan that covered
substantially all employees of Mutual and the
Company.

Effective January 1, 2000, all employees of
Mutual, Stateco and S.1.S., became employees of
State Auto P&C, under new management agree-
ments effective on that same date. See related dis-
cussion at Note (1)(b). Pursuant to the new manage-
ment agreements, the Company paid cash of
approximately $14.6 million to Mutual, equal to the
net prepaid pension asset received.

The assets of the defined benefit pension plan
are represented primarily by U.S. government and
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agency obligations, bonds, and common stocks.
The Company’s policy is to fund pension costs in
accordance with the requirements of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Benefits
are determined by applying factors specified in the

plan to a participant's defined average annual com-
pensation.

information regarding the funded status and net
periodic pension benefit for the Company’s participa-
tion in the defined benefit pension plan is as follows:

December 31
2001 2000
{in thousands)
Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning Of YA ......c.cccveviiecie et $ 87,093 44,016
Transfer in benefit obligation at beginning of year due to employee transfer ..................... — 39,586
SEIVICE COSL..oviie e it in ettt sttt eere st e e s r st b ear et b sbesa et e e e b et ea b be ket et e eb et aneaneeres 3,537 3,339
INEEIEST COST.. ettt et st s b e s e e e e sae s e beenre e e 6,750 6,728
Changes in PIan PrOVISIONS ........cuiiie e ettt et ee s st e et e seresreeste e steaesraesaseentesaaaeseaens — 1,205
ACtUANAI (QAIN) JOSS 1uvererrreieerer e rerrer e r et rsn e b rae s sete s e pa b ae bt sae e emesraraseennearerennes 9,145 (438)
BENEHS DAIA .....ee e et et eea b e e san e e eh et e abe e e ne s eanee s (9,048) (7,343)
Benefit obligation at @NA Of YA ......cviccivcerereert ettt e e $ 97,477 87,093
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of Year ... $162,658 84,883
Transfer in plan assets at beginning of year due to employee transfer..........cccvvrccinnine — 76,340
Actual return 0N PlaN GSSEES ..o e ettt ere s (17,413) 8,778
BENEFItS PAIA ..cuvieeieeirte ittt ra et r et reeseaneesresebearenreens (9,048) (7,343)
Fair value of plan assets at @Nd Of Y A .......o.eceeiireeieeciei ettt $136,197 162,658
FUNGEA SLALUS ...cveviieciiitiie et ea vt eeteeeae b besae s e e s besas e beete et aessee s s aebeasbesasnesesetassnseneas $ 38,720 75,565
Unrecognized transition @SSO ...t s sar e e (725) {846)
UNnrecognized Prior SEIVICE COSE....cviiiiririiicrriee st eerre e sae b e sensaeeneeas 2,263 2,470
Unrecognized Net (GaiN) OF [OSS ...oiiiiiiiiiiicieiie i ceeeriee e et ssvess e e ssse s aeransaeseneas 3,086 (39,451)
Net prepaid PENSION EXPEINISE .....vveecieereereereeieesiie st sstve s esterasieseaststesteesssseesarssesssteerseeennes $ 43,344 37,738

Year ended December 31
2001 2000 1999
(in thousands)
Components of net periodic benefit

SBIVICE COSL ..oiiiiii ittt st s et e et e st s s et et s b e s ssebe s sbeeesasssrnressanbes $ 3,537 3,339 2,047
INEEIESE COST ...ttt ettt et ssa e e s re et s e rae e s 6,750 6,728 3,278
Expected return on plan assets ... (14,633) {13,391) (6,125)
Amortization of prior SEIVICE COST .....iiiiiviiiiiir e e 207 207 114
Amortization of transition @SSet......coc.cciccriiivr e e (121) (121) (124)
Amortization of net (gain) Or 10SS....c.ccvieevcriivieirceee e {1,346) (930) 7
Nl o =g o e Tol oY= s = O SO OO T USROS $(5,606) (4,168) (803)
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Weighted-average assumptions as of December 31

DISCOUNT rate....eeiieieeieci e
Expected long-term rate of return on assets...........cccceeuue.
Rates of increase in compensation levels......c.cccc i

Effective January 1, 2000, the net prepaid pen-
sion expense is carried on the financial statements
of the Company and the annual periodic pension
benefit or cost is allocated to affiliated companies
based on allocations pursuant to intercompany
management agreements. The Company’s share of
the 2001 and 2000 net periodic benefit was $4.0
million and $2.6 million, respectively.

The Company maintains a defined contribution
plan that covers substantially all employees of the
Company. Contributions to the plan are based on
employee contributions and the level of Company
match. The Company’s share of the expense under
the plan totaled $1,120,000, $890,000 and $852,000
for the years 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

{b) Postretirement Benefits

In addition to pension benefits, the Company pro-
vides certain health care and life insurance benefits
for its eligible retired employees. Substantially all of
the Company's employees may become eligible for
these benefits if they retire between age 55 and 65

Change in benefit obligation

Year ended December 31

2001 2000 1898
............................ 7.50% 8.00% 8.00%
............................ 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
............................ 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

with 15 years or more of service or if they retire at
age 65 or later with 5 years or more of service.

Prior to 2000, State Auto P&C, Stateco and
S.I.8., pursuant to an intercompany agreement,
were participants, together with Mutual, in a postre-
tirement medical and life insurance benefit plan. The
postretirement benefit obligation was immaterial to
the consolidated balance sheet prior to 2000.

Effective January 1, 2000, all employees of
Mutual, Stateco and S.1.S., became employees of
State Auto P&C, under new management agree-
ments effective on that same date. See related dis-
cussion at Note (1)(b). Pursuant to the new man-
agement agreements, the Company received cash
of approximately $49.6 million from Mutual, equal
to the funded status of the postretirement obliga-
tion assumed.

Plan assets are primarily composed of mutual
funds and government securities.

Information regarding the funded status and net
periodic benefit cost for the Company’s participa-
tion in the postretirement benefit plan is as follows:

2001 2000
{in thousands)

Benefit obligation at beginning Of YEAr ..........cccceicieeeiieiieeccie ettt e sae s ens $42,913 1,481

Transfer in benefit obligation at beginning of year due to employee transfer ...........ccc......... — 43,632
Y=Y 0V [o1= Y oo 11 O 1,423 1,242
1[0 G (S ot o 1) RSP RSRPRTRT 3,356 3,205
Yo (U E= L= T T- L o O U PO PP OP RSP TPPPP 2,946 (5,247)

Employee contributions.......cccovvicii i

Benefit obligation at end oOf year ...

Change in plan assets

{2,080) {1,400)

.................................................... $48,558 42,913

Fair value of plan assets at beginning Of YEar........ccvciiieeiniciie e $ 1,568 —
Transfer of plan assets at beginning of year due to employee transfer .........cc.ccooveoenin. — 1,479
EXpected retlrn ON @SSEES .....uii it e e st e e aeaa e 133 126
GaliN (JOSS) ON ASSEES 1iiiiiiiiiie ittt s ettt et e et e s s te e et e sattrae s s s bbsbae e e s s sebreesannaree s 67 (37)
Fair value of plan assets at @Nd Of YEAr ........ccc.uvceei it ae e $ 1,768 1,568
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Funded status at end of year..........cccccvcvvvcien v veinenieeenn,
Unrecognized transition asset ........cccocovveeviin e,
Unrecognized gain ....cuveveeercereniiceieree e

Accrued postretirement benefit obligation at end of year

Components of net periodic benefit cost

SEIVICE COSt..coiiiiiiriiir it
INtEreSt COSt.. oottt e e
Expected return on asSetS........covvveciieinniri s
Amortization of unrecognized amounts...........ccoeeiivceenee.
Net periodic benefit COSt ........ccoviieiiviiiieciiiieccciie e

An 8.0% weighted average discount rate was
used for 2001 and 2000 to determine the accumu-
lated postretirement benefit obligation. An 8.5%
weighted average rate was used for 2001 and 2000
to determine the long-term rate of return on plan
assets.

Effective January 1, 2000, the postretirement
benefit liability is carried on the financial state-
ments of the Company and the net periodic benefit
cost is allocated to affiliated companies based on
allocations pursuant to intercompany management
agreements. The Company’s share of the 2001 and
2000 net periodic cost was $3.0 million and $2.6
million, respectively.

The assumed rate of future increases in per
capita cost of health care benefits was 10% for the
first year and grading down 1% per year to an ulti-
mate rate of 5%. The health care cost trend rate
assumption affects the amounts reported. For
example, increasing the assumed health care cost
trend rate by one percentage point would increase
the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation
by approximately $7,464,000 and would increase
the medical service and interest cost by approxi-
mately $1,156,000.

The Company also has a supplemental execu-
tive retirement plan for which the accrued obliga-
tion at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was
$1,709,000 and $2,356,000, respectively.

December 31
2001 2000
(in thousands)

................................................... $(46,790)  (41,345)

(38) (41)

................................................... (8,700) (12,099)

...................................................... $(55,528)  (53,485)

Year ended December 31
2001 2000
{in thousands)

............................................ $1,423 1,242
............................................ 3,356 3,205
............................................ (133) (126)
............................................ (523) (495)
............................................ $4,123 3,826

{9) Stockholders' Equity

{a) Treasury Shares

in May 1999, State Auto Financial’s Board of
Directors approved a plan to.repurchase up to 4.0
million shares of its outstanding common stock over
a period ending December 31, 2000. Repurchases
were transacted to maintain the same ownership
ratios between Mutual and the public as it existed in
May 1999, with 69% repurchased from Mutual and
31% from the public. Through December 31, 1999
all 4.0 million shares were repurchased, with approx-
imately 2.7 million shares repurchased from Mutual
and 1.3 million shares from the public. In conjunction
with the stock repurchase plan, State Auto Financial
entered into a line of credit agreement with Mutual.
See related footnote at note 6 (c).

In May 2000, State Auto Financial’s Board of
Directors approved a plan to repurchase up to 1.0
million shares of its common stock from the public
over a period ending December 31, 2001. Through
December 31, 2001, State Auto Financial repur-
chased 50,522 shares from the public. Repurchases
during 2000 and 2001 were funded through divi-
dends from subidiaries.

On March 1, 2002, the State Auto Financial's Board
of Directors approved a plan to repurchase up to 1.0
million shares of common stock from the public over a
period extending to and through December 31, 2003.
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{b) Dividend Restrictions and Statutory Financial
Information

State Auto P&C, Milbank, Farmers Casualty, SAIC
and National are subject to regulations and restric-
tions under which payment of dividends from statuto-
ry earned surplus can be made to State Auto
Financial during the year without prior approval of
regulatory authorities. Pursuant to these rules,

approximately $25.1 million is available for payment
to State Auto Financial in 2002 without prior approval.

Reconciliations of statutory capital and surplus and
net income {loss), as determined using statutory
accounting practices, to the amounts included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements are
as follows:

December 31
2001 2000
(in thousands)

Statutory capital and surplus of insurance subsidianes........ccccce i e $317,983 325,532
Net assets of noninsurance parent and affiliates .......c.occceee v (21,033) (25,744)
296,950 299,788
Increases (decreases):
Deferred policy aCqUISItION COSES.....c.ciivviiicoiiierieerrr et e s reenran 67,087 32,458
Losses and 10SS eXPenses PAYADIE .......cciiv ittt a e 26,216 13,403
Net prepaid PENSION EXPENSE ....c.uiicei i et steette et e sttt e stee s sessressstaesseaesrtessressreeans 43,344 37,738
Postretirement benefit iability ..........cccveoi e (19,708) (18,478)
Deferred federal INCOME taXES ......ccci v e et eseree s (25,347) (1,854)
Excess of statutory loss liabilities over case basis amounts........c.cccvveeiiviiiiiicnie e — 2,567
Fixed maturities at fair value .........ococociiiccice e [P 8,979 17,250
L€ ToTe T 1 ]| D USSP 2,012 2,270
(0T o T OOy SO U 660 917
Stockholders' equity per accompanying consolidated
fINANCIAL STALEMENTS...c.iivteiitrie et e b ettt skt s s etk rere st sbeenes $400,193 386,059

Statutory net income (loss) of insurance subsidiaries............

Net income of noninsurance parent and affiliates

Increases (decreases):
Deferred policy acquisition costs

Postretirement benefit expense
Deferred federal income taxes
Goodwill amortization
Other, net

Net income per accompanying consolidated
financial statements
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Losses and loss expenses payable........ccoocecvvcviiereiienen.
Net prepaid pension eXpPense........ccccvvvvvvivereecieeesvieeeenneine

Year ended December 31
2001 2000 1999
(in thousands)

.................... $(39,773) 43,991 36,601
.................... 1,826 1,125 2,944

(37,947) 45,116 39,545
.................... 34,629 3,522 3,407
.................... 12,813 (103) 15
.................... 1,131 640 2,578
.................... (1,230) (1,150) —
.................... 10,673 401 (2,265)
.................... (258) (258) (258)
.................... 804 (454) (206)
.................... $ 20,615 47,714 42,816
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In March 1998, the National Association of
insurance Commissioners revised the Accounting
Practices and Procedures Manual for insurance com-
panies in a process referred to as Codification. The
revised manual became effective January 1, 2001.
The revised manual changed, to some extent, pre-
scribed statutory insurance accounting practices and
resulted in changes to the accounting practices that
the insurance subsidiaries of State Auto Financial use
to prepare its statutory-basis financial statements.
The cumulative effect of changes in accounting prin-
ciples adopted to conform to the revised Accounting
Practices and Procedures Manual was reported as an
adjustment to statutory surplus as of January 1, 2001.
The adoption of Codification, as of January 1, 2001,
increased statutory surplus of the insurance sub-
sidiaries of State Auto Financial by approximately
$19.3 million.

(10) Preferred Stock

State Auto Financial has authorized two classes of
preferred stock. For both classes, upon issuance, the
Board of Directors has authority to fix and determine
the significant features of the shares issued, includ-
ing, among other things, the dividend rate, redemp-
tion price, redemption rights, conversion features and
liguidation price payable in the event of any liquida-
tion, dissolution, or winding up of the affairs of State
Auto Financial. See note 6 (a) regarding State Auto

Pro forma net earnings.....cooevcicinn e,

Pro forma net earnings per common share

S 7= ] [
DIUtEd. ...

Financial’s obligation to issue redeemable preferred
shares to SPC in connection with its catastrophic
reinsurance arrangements with a financial institution.

The Class A preferred stock is not entitled to vot-
ing rights until, for any period, dividends are in arrears
in the amount of six or more quarterly dividends.

{11} Stock Incentive Plans

The Company follows Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees” (APB 25) and related
Interpretations in accounting for its employee stock
incentive plans. For stock options granted to
employees of Mutual in 1999, the Company also
followed APB 25 and related Interpretations, as the
Company deemed such employees to be common
law employees of the Company. Compensation
cost charged against operations in 2001, 2000 and
1999 were $14,000, $31,000 and $137,000, respec-
tively, for those employee stock options granted
where the exercise price was less than the market
price of the underlying stock on the date of grant.
Had compensation cost for the Company's plans
been determined based on the fair values at the
grant dates consistent with the method of SFAS No.
123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
(SFAS No. 123), the Company's pro forma net earn-
ings and net earnings per share information would
have been as follows:

2001 2000 1988
(in thousands, except
per share figures)

...................................... $18,865 45,784 41,414

The fair value of options granted in 2001, 2000 and 1999 were estimated at the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model. The weighted average fair values and related assumptions for options granted were

as follows:

Fair Value ..ot
Dividend yield ... e
Risk free interest rate ........cccovvviiiiiciiiiccie e
Expected volatility factor..........cccovevviccnic e
Expected life (Years) .....ccccovvvvrcienrenenineenvineonenesennonn

2001 2000 1989
................................... $ 6.79 4.66 4.49
.................................... .90% .90% .90%
................................... 4.85% 6.51% 5.77%
..................................... .36 34 .32
................................... 6.7 7.2 5.7
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The Black-Scholes option valuation model was
developed for use in estimating the fair value of trad-
ed options which have no vesting restrictions and are
fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models
require the input of highly subjective assumptions
including the expected stock price volatility. Because
the Company's employee stock options have charac-
teristics significantly different from those of traded
options, and because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value esti-
mate, in management's opinion, the existing models
do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure
of the fair value of its employee stock options.

The Company has stock option plans for certain
directors and key employees. In May 2000, the
Company’s 1991 Stock Option Plan and 1991
Directors’ Stock Option Plan were replaced with the
2000 Stock Option Plan (Key Employee Plan) and
the 2000 Directors Stock Option Plan (Nonemployee
Director Plan), respectively, upon approval of share-
holders at the 2000 annual meeting of shareholders.
The Nonemployee Directors' Plan provides each
nonemployee director an option to purchase 1,500
shares of common stock following each annual
meeting of the shareholders at an option price equal
to the fair market value at the close of business on
the date of the annual meeting. The Company has
reserved 300,000 shares of common stock under
this plan. These options are exercisable at issuance
to 10 years from date of grant. The Key Employee's
Plan provides that qualified stock options may be
granted at an option price not less than fair market
value at date of grant and that nonqualified stock
options may be granted at any price determined by
the options committee of the Board of Directors.
The Company has reserved 5,000,000 shares of
common stock under this plan. These options are
exercisable at such time or times as may be deter-
mined by a committee of the Company’s Board of
Directors. Normally, these options are exercisable
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from 1 to 10 years from date of grant.

The Company has an employee stock purchase
plan with a dividend reinvestment feature, under
which employees of the Company may choose at
two different specified time intervals each year to
have up to 6% of their annual base earnings withheld
to purchase the Company's common stock. The pur-
chase price of the stock is 85% of the lower of its
beginning-of-interval or end-of-interval market price.
The Company has reserved 2,400,000 shares of
common stock under this plan. At December 31,
2001, 1,803,000 shares have been purchased under
this plan.

The Company has a stock option incentive plan for
certain designated independent insurance agencies
that represent the Company and its affiliates. The
Company has reserved 400,000 shares of common
stock under this plan. The plan provides that the
options become exercisable on the first day of the
calendar year following the agency’s achievement of
specific production and profitability requirements
over a period not greater than two calendar years
from date of grant or a portion thereof in the first cal-
endar year in which an agency commences participa-
tion under the plan. Options granted and vested
under this plan have a 10-year term. The Company
has accounted for the plan in its accompanying finan-
cial statements at fair value. The fair.value of options
granted was estimated at the reporting date or vest-
ing date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. The weighted average fair value and related
assumptions for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively,
were as follows: fair value of $8.04, $10.91 and $4.02;
dividend yield of .290% for all years; expected volatility
factor of .34, .32 and .30; risk-free interest rate of
5.16%, 5.19% and 6.80%; and expected life of the
option of 8.7, 9.0 and 9.7 years. Expense of
$140,000, $493,000 and $105,000 associated with
this plan was recognized in 2001, 2000 and 1989,
respectively.
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A summary of the Company's stock option activity and related information for these plans for the years ended

December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, follows:

2001

2000

1888

Weighted - Average

Options

Weighted - Average
Exercise Price

Weighted - Average

Options

(numbers in thousands, except per share figures)

Options Exercise Price
Outstanding, beginning
of year 2,852 $8.28
Granted 299 16.53
Exercised 315 4.39
Canceled (39) 10.16
QOutstanding, end of year 2,797 8.70

2,546
492
(129)

(57)
2,852

$7.76
10.29
4.32
11.15
8.28

2,272
453
(165)

_(14
2,546

Exercise Price

$ 6.76
11.24
3.34
10.52
7.76

A summary of information pertaining to options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2001 follows:

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted - Average

Remaining
Contractual Life

Range of Exercise Prices = Number

Weighted - Average
Exercise Price

Less than $5.00 521 1.2
$5.01 - $10.00 883 4.1
Greater than $10.01 1,393 7.8

2.797 54

(12) Net Earnings Per Common Share

$

Number

Weighted - Average

4.31
6.58

13.45

9.58

(numbers in thousands, except per share figures)

521
872
980
2,373

The following table sets forth the compilation of basic and diluted net earnings per common share:

Numerator:

Net earnings for basic and diluted earnings per common share..........

Denominator:
Weighted average shares for basic net earnings

PEr COMMON Shar€......ccccviviviiiieei e,
Effect of dilutive stock options.......cc.cccvvvvevvceeeenenns

Adjusted weighted average shares for

diluted net earnings per common share .............
Basic net earnings per common share ........cccoccvenee.
Diluted net earnings per common share..........ccccoveevene.

Exercise Price

$ 4.31
6.56
12.93
8.70

Year ended December 31

2001 20C0 1969
(in thousands, except per share data)
$20,615 47,714 42,816
38,775 38,427 40,780
906 693 746
39,681 39,120 41,526
$ 0.53 1.24 1.05
$ 0.52 1.21 1.03 -
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(13) Other Comprehensive Income

The related federal income tax effects of each component of other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

Net unrealized holding losses on securities:
Unrealized holding losses arising during 2001 ........cccece e
Reclassification adjustments for gains realized in net income
Net unrealized holding l0SSES......ccovvceiicinie e

Other comprehensive [0SS......ccveveieeiveii e e

Net unrealized holding gains on securities:
Unrealized holding gains arising during 2000............cccccevueuen.
Reclassification adjustments for gains realized in net income
Net unrealized holding gains ........ccccvee e

Other comprehensive INCOME .......coeviiieiiicie et

Net unrealized holding losses on securities:
Unrealized holding losses arising during 1999..........cccceiene.
Reclassification adjustments for gains realized in net income
Net unrealized holding I0SSES........cccvivririininen e
Other comprehensive l0SS........cccivveciiien e,

(14) Reportable Segments

Prior to 2001 the Company had four reportable
segments: standard insurance, nonstandard insur-
ance, investment management services and manage-
ment and operations services (prior to 2000, execu-
tive insurance management services). The reportable
segments are business units managed separately
because of the differences in products or service they
offer and type of customer they serve.

The standard insurance segment provides person-
al and commercial insurance to its policyholders. Its
principal lines of business include personal and com-
mercial automobile, homeowners, commercial multi-
peril, workers’ compensation, general liability and fire
insurance. The nonstandard insurance segment pro-
vides personal automobile insurance to policyholders
that are typically rejected or canceled by standard
insurance carriers because of poor loss experience or
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Year ended December 31, 2001

Before-Tax  Tax (Expense) Net-of-Tax
Amount or Benefit Amount
(in thousands)
.............. $(10,787) 3,775 (7,012)
.............. (1,962) 687 (1,275)
.............. (12,749) 4,462 (8,287)
.............. $(12,749) 4,462 (8,287)
Year ended December 31, 2000
Before-Tax  Tax (Expense) Net-of-Tax
Amount or Benefit Amount
(in thousands)
.............. $36,272 (12,695) 23,577
.............. {5,255) 1,839 (3,416)
.............. 31,017 (10,856) 20,161
.............. $31,017 (10,856) 20,161
Year ended December 31, 1889
Before-Tax  Tax (Expense) Net-of-Tax
Amount or Benefit Amount
(in thousands)
.............. $(28,361) 9,926 (18,435)
.............. (2,593) 908 (1,685)
.............. (30,954) 10,834 (20,120)
.............. $(30,954) 10,834 (20,120)

a history of late payment of premiums. Both the
standard and nonstandard insurance segments oper-
ate primarily in the central and eastern United States,
excluding New York, New Jersey, and the New
England states, through the independent insurance
agency system.

Effective July 1, 2001, with the Pooled Subsidiaries
assumption of the former Meridian Mutual business
through the Pooling Arrangement, as more fully
described in note 8(a), the Company’s standard and
nonstandard insurance segments have been segre-
gated into four reportable segments. While these
segments offer similar products and services and
operate in the same geographical locations within the
United States, they differ within their operating mea-
sures, more specifically within their loss and prof-
itability results. Consequently, the Company has
defined the two insurance segments that existed
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prior to 2001 to be State Auto standard insurance and
State Auto nonstandard insurance and the former
Meridian Mutual business assumed through the
Pooling Arrangement by the Pooled Subsidiaries to
be Meridian standard insurance and Meridian non-
standard insurance. Monitoring the performance of
the Meridian segments allows management to review
the results of its integration efforts of these segments
while this business continues to be processed
through the Meridian systems platform. As this busi-
ness begins to migrate through new and renewal poli-
cy issuance on the State Auto systems platform
where State Auto policies, pricing and underwriting
philosophies are fully integrated, it is anticipated that
the Meridian segments will decrease.

The investment management services segment
manages the investment portfolios of affiliated insur-
ance companies. The management and operations
services segment provided employee services and
managed the day-to-day operations of all affiliated
Companies. As a result of the loss of the manage-
ment and operations services income as described in
note 6(d), the management and operations service
segment will be included in the all other category for
segment reporting beginning in the first quarter of
2002 as the results for this segment will no longer
meet the quantitative thresholds for separate presen-

Revenues from external customers:

State Auto standard iNSUranNCe w...vvevvveevce e
State Auto nonstandard iNSUrancCe.......ccccvveveeeeeeiesenn
Meridian standard iNSUranCe ....covovveeeeee i
Meridian nonstandard iNSUraNCe ......ccceccceeeivivivencerecnen s,
Investment management Services.......ccocovvecieenenneieneenn
Management and operations Services ..o vevvcvvenriens
ALOTNEY oo et et
Total revenues from external customers............oveeceeeeveneennn,

Intersegment revenues:

State Auto standard iINSUraNCe .......cccevvererieveeeecesrenenns
Investment management ServiCes........ccocvivieicnnenineeennns
Management and operations Services .......cccoevvineinieenninnns
D o] { =Y GOSN
Total intersegment reVeNUES ......ccovvevvevcceencenne e
Total rEVENUE ...t et

tation as a reportable segment.

The Company evaluates performance of its
reportable segments and allocates resources thereon
based on profit or loss from operations, exciuding net
realized gains on investments on the Company’s
investment portfolio, before federal income taxes.
The Company monitors its assets for the insurance
segments on a legal entity basis, which for the
Pooled Subsidiaries includes assets of three of the
four reportable insurance segments (State Auto stan-
dard insurance, Meridian standard insurance and
Meridian nonstandard insurance). The Company
does not allocate assets to the management and
operations services segment. The accounting poli-
cies of the reportable segments are the same as
those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies.

Revenue from segments in the other category is
attributable to three other operating segments of the
Company; an insurance software development and
resale segment, a premium finance segment and a
property management and leasing segment. These
segments have never met the quantitative thresh-
olds for individual presentation as reportable seg-
ments.

The following provides financial information
regarding the Company’s reportable segments:

Year ended December 31
2001 2000 1999
{in thousands)

......................... $485,059 406,602 392,557
........................ 37,536 29,695 32,973
......................... 72,825 — —
......................... 6,501 — —
......................... 3,466 3,360 3,371
......................... 12,621 14,654 5,628
......................... 3,162 3,227 3,537
......................... 621,160 457,438 438,066
......................... 128 162 120
......................... 3,553 2,884 2,575
......................... 3,706 4,303 1,451
......................... 1,800 1,744 1,676
......................... 9,187 9,093 5,822
......................... 630,347 466,531 441,578
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Year ended December 31

2001 2000 jeeg
(in thousands)
Reconciling items:
INtErSEgMENT FEVEMUBS ..o ittt st e e st (9,187) (9,093 (5,822)
COIPOrAt FEVENUES ....ocueevvi e eeectee s iee et seee et tae s eneeaseeatesereer e saaesnresnasnsee s 150 81 250
Net realized gains on iNVESIMENT..........ccovii e 1,962 5,255 2,555
Total consolidated rEVENUES ........cocovveiiiiiei et ne e $623,272 462,774 440,871
Segment profit {loss):
State Auto standard INSUFANCE .........coiieiiiieiiee e e ae s $ 45,664 35,579 41,146
State Auto NonNstandard INSUFANCE ......ccovvet it sesesss e s e aneasssssaessas 1,378 (116) 1,647
Meridian standard iINSUIANCE .......uevveee e (44,397) —_ —_
Meridian nonstandard INSUraNCE .......cecevicrereniir e s e e (5,933) — —
Investment management SEIVICES ... .civiiieevcieiniiie e ece e rer e rererree e e 5,965 5,354 5,191
Management and operations SErVICES ......ceivveieeieeciee et 15,322 17,552 6,330
FN e 11 o= O ST 1,004 905 1,238
Total segment Profit........ce i s 19,003 59,274 55,552
Reconciling items: .
COIPOrate EXPENSES. ..c.vveueivrveretirteeiteireresteteseestestessanssesasseesiesreearessessesseesens (2,989) (3,085) (1,122)
Net realized gains on iNVestMeNntS.........ccciccc e, 1,962 5,255 2,555
Total consolidated income before federal incCome taxes.....cvvvvevvivrvcvercvenee, $ 17,976 61,444 56,985
Net investment income:
State Auto standard iINSUFANCE ..........oicciciever et $ 37,230 33,436 29,060
State Auto nonstandard INSUFANCE ...t 1,997 1,899 1,839
Meridian standard iINSUFANCE .......cccvvee it ernes 3,595 — —
Meridian nonstandard iNSUraNCE.........ccceceviereeeeeiceicreirees e errreer e e e snees 338 —_— —
Investment management SErVICES .......vuveveeie e s 318 360 272
F 1o (1= SRR 193 244 268
Total Net INVESTMENT INCOME ...iviiiiii ettt re s rene s 43,671 35,939 31,439
Reconciling items:
Corporate net iNvestMent iNCOME .....uiivvece e e 150 81 249
Reclassification adjustments in consolidation .........ccccceveeeeeeeiiiiniienene 3,554 2,895 2,574
Total consolidated net investment iNCOMEe .......cocccii s $ 47375 38,915 34,262
December 31
2001 2000
(in thousands)
Segment assets:
adeTo) =Ta IS W o =Y o [F= Vo 1= O RSP $1,261,689 850,080
State Auto NONSTANAArd INSUIANCE .........oiieivireer et er e st e s ere e s s e vsasan e eees 67,043 48,811
Investment ManagemMent SEIVICES .....cci e et e e e e ee e st e nree s 8,698 6,879
o] (T OO TP 15,685 15,543
Total SEGMENT ASSES ..ottt ettt et e s s 1,353,115 921,313
Reconciling items:
0T goToT ez 14-I= 1111 «< RO U UURP SRR 3,559 1,150
Reclassification adjustments in consolidation ... e e 10,822 (24,357)
Total CONSOAAEA @SSEIS .....ocviieiieiiticiirii et et ere e ee e e e e e s e sheseesressaesans e et setnsansassesteansaneans $1,367,496 898,106
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Revenues from external customers include the following products and services:

Year ended December 31
2001 2000 1889
{in thousands)

Earned premiums

State Auto standard insurance:
AUtOMODIIE ..eeeeee e ettt et a et v saoneres $237,401 203,967 204,155 -
Homeowners and farmOWNEYS.........cocciviiiie e e 77,105 67,247 63,666
Commercial MURI=PEIL ..o 31,215 25,349 23,902
Workers' COMPENSAtION .....cccvviiirieer et e s ser e sab e sena s 15,365 10,628 10,764
Fire and @llI&d ........ocoveeeoeece ettt sttt et et s 36,031 27,848 25,763
Other and products lability .........cceeveiene i 21,875 21,924 20,052
OEr INBS ittt sttt e e sa s er e e ressa e neesae s 25,304 13,603 12,873
Total State Auto standard insurance earned Premitims ..o e nvniceinens 444,296 370,566 361,175
Total State Auto nonstandard insurance earned premiums.......c.coueeceeeeeeennn. 35,256 27,401 30,883
Meridian standard insurance:
AULOMODIIE ...t ettt ettt 36,402 — —
Homeowners and farmMOWNEIS.........vviiirie e 9,536 — —
Commercial MUI-PEFL.........ooviiiirie e e 11,381 — —
Workers’ COMPENnSation .......co.ccoeiicr et . 8,660 - —
Fire and @llied .....coov et s san e e 499 — —
Other and products lability ..........cc.ciev i 519 — —
Oher INES ..o st be e et te e 2,157 — —
Total Meridian standard insurance earned premiums ......ccccccveeecvevereveiienrnnns 69,154 - —
Total Meridian nonstandard insurance earned Premiums .....c.cvecceerecviuvercecan. 6,501 — —
Total @arNed PEIMIUMS ...cccvviieiiiieieieceeiitree e e e erberarasssreessbasssresrsessseassesnas 555,207 397,967 392,058
Investment Management SEIVICES ........covivvviciere ettt 2,965 2,940 3,099
Management and operations SErVICES ........coiveriiceneninc e 12,621 14,654 4,908
Net INVESTMENT INCOME ...vvviiic e e b ee e 47,225 38,834 34,012
01 2T g aToTo a1 7= T PPRRSURPUTT 3,142 3,043 3,989
Total revenues from external CUSIOMErS .......eciiieeeciiee e $621,160 457,438 438,066

The standard insurance segments and the Meridian nonstandard insurance segment participate in a reinsurance pool-
ing agreement with other standard and nonstandard insurance affiliates. For discussion regarding this arrangement
and these segments’ contribution to the pool and participation in the pool, see note 6.

Revenues from external customers are derived entirely within the United States. Also, all long-lived assets are located
within the United States.
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(15) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

TOLA FEVENUES ....eeevriicriie ettt et sneee
income before federal income taxes..........c..ccecevennee. ..
NELINCOME i e
Net earnings per common share (note 9a):

(16) Contingencies

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries are
involved in litigation and may become involved in
potential litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business. Additionally, the insurance subsidiaries may
be impacted by adverse regulatory actions and
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2001
For three months ended
March 31 June 30, September 30, December 31,
(doliars in thousands, except per share amounts)
$118,001 123,032 156,671 225,568
19,199 12,028 8,029 (21,280)
14,540 9,433 7,276 (10,634)
0.37 0.24 0.19 0.27)
0.36 0.24 0.18 (0.27)
2000
For three months ended
March 31 June 30, September 30, December3i.
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
$116,461 113,953 116,328 116,032
18,584 16,512 9,131 17,217
13,683 12,494 8,006 13,531
0.35 0.33 0.21 0.35
0.35 0.32 0.20 0.34

adverse court decisions where insurance coverages
are expanded beyond the scope originally contem-
plated in the policy(ies). In the opinion of manage-
ment, the effects, if any, of such litigation and pub-
lished court decicions are not expected to be materi-
al to the consolidated financial statements.
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MARKET PRICE RANGE, COMMON STOCK"
Initial Public Offering - June 28, 1991, §2.25

The high and low sale prices for each quarterly period for
the past two years as reported by Nasdag are:

2000 > High Low Dividend
First Qtr. - $ 9.750 §7.125° $.0275 .
Second Qtr. 12.125 7.938 0275
Third Gtr. 13.625 10.438 0300

. Fourth Qtr. 11,750 11.250 0300
2001
First Qir. ‘ $17.688  513.313 $.0300
Second Qtr. 17.340 12.833 .0300
Third Qtr. 17.800 12.300 . .0325

17.500 13.100 0323

Fourth Qtr.
(1) Adjusted for a March 1993 2-for-1 and July 1996 3-for-2 common

stock split efTected in the form of e stock dividend and a July 1998
2-for-1 common stock spiit, resmeciively.
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